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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET
(“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG
LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a high investment risk may be attached. In
particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track
record of profitability nor any obligation to forecast future
profitability. Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the
emerging nature of companies listed on GEM and the business
sectors or countries in which the companies operate.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of
investing in such companies and should make the decision to
invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater
risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated
investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there
is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible
to high market volatility than securities trade on the Main
Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid
market in the securities trade on GEM. The principal means of
information dissemination on GEM is publication on the Internet
website operated by the Stock Exchange. Listed companies are
not generally required to issue paid announcements in gazette
newspapers. Accordingly, prospective investors should note that
they need to have access to the GEM website in order to obtain
up-to-date information on GEM-listed issuers.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility
for the contents of this document, makes no representation as
to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any
liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in
reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this
document.

This document, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of

Proactive Technology Holdings Limited collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange for the
purpose of giving information with regard to Proactive
Technology Holdings Limited. The Directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge
and belief: (1) the information contained in this document is
accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which
would make any statement in this document misleading; and (3)
all opinions expressed in this document have been arrived at
after due and careful consideration and are founded on bases
and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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MISSION STATEMENT
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Proactive’s mission is to provide interactive
telecommunications and technology solutions to
enterprises in the Asia Pacific region to enhance
business value and customer satisfaction. Proactive
commits to empowering its customers with the ability
to absorb and take advantages of the latest
technologies by providing top quality
telecommunications, information technology and
computer telephony solutions. It is the mission of the
Company to build on its existing position in the
industry to become the leading Tele-Commerce
technology and service provider in the Asia Pacific

region.

Proactive is a pioneer in this new market with a
solid record in offering cost effective and scaleable
solutions to multinational corporations, carriers and

service providers.
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Proactive Technology Holdings Limited (“Proactive”) is
one of the leading technology companies in the Asia
Pacific region, well versed in both telecommunications
and information technologies.

Proactive was founded by a group of experts in
telecommunications and information technology in 1992.
Over the years, Proactive has designed and developed a
wide range of value-added telecommunications and
computer telephony solutions and established longstanding
partnerships with a number of industry leaders such as
Lucent Technologies, Nortel Networks, 3Com,
Intel*Dialogic, Microsoft, Oracle, Nokia, InfoTalk,
Rockwell FirstPoint

Contact, Captaris, Cell

Communications and GN Netcom.

Today, the telecommunications solutions developed by
Proactive serve many major fixed and mobile carriers,
and VolP operators in the Asia Pacific region. Its enterprise
computer telephony solutions are deployed by well-known
multinational corporations from a wide spectrum of
industries including banking, finance, utilities, tele-services
operators, call-centre bureau, education, transportation,
government, and etc.

Proactive is committed to provide the industry with world-
class technology and quality services based on its thorough
understanding of its customers’ businesses and their needs.
Its dedication to product research and development is
another key factor contributing to its success.

Firmly rooted in Hong Kong, Proactive has recorded
continuous growth with the establishment in both its
telecommunications and computer telephony sectors from
the local market. It has been pursuing expansion of
business opportunity in the Greater China region. In order
to operate its business in a more efficient manner and
improve after sales services in China, Proactive has
enhanced and consolidated the market position of its two
representative offices in Beijing and Shanghai, furthermore
it has also set up a supporting office in Guangzhou to
provide “One Stop Shop Service” for customers. To
expedite its businesses expansion, Proactive further
strengthened its financial background through securing the
listing on the GEM board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited in May 2000.

Proactive’s mission is to become the leading Tele-
Commerce technology applications and service provider
in the Asia Pacific region. Leveraging the strong foundation
in both telecommunications and on information
technologies that has been built and reinforced over the
years, Proactive will continue to focus on its core business
and explore new high-growth business opportunities in

this ever-changing industry.
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Financial Highlights Annual Report 2002
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Loss per share - Basic

BRER - &4

HK4.3 cents 1l

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& 51 7R)
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+-HL
2002 2001 Change
—ETCF ZET-F 21
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
Turnover B 26,312 49,355 (47%)
Cost of sales HERAK (10,149) (19,473)
Gross profit e 16,163 29,882 (46%)
Gross profit margin ERx 61% 61%
Distribution and selling expenses DHRHEERR (58) (1,535) (96%)
General and administrative expenses —BRETHER (25,331) (51,283) (51%)
Loss from operations LEER (9,226) (22,936) (60%)
Loss attributable to shareholders R ER (9,900) (23,544) (58%)
Dividends i 8 - -

HK10.1 cents i1l

Shareholders’ equity RS 22,431 32,286 (31%)
Total assets BEE 33,478 47,521 (30%)
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TURNOVER % % %8

HK$'000F 7 7T

(LOSS) PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS BRER FE(L (B#E) ZEF

HK$'000F /& 7T

TURNOVER BY BUSINESS SEGMENT IR £ 75 8|9 o & ¥ 48

HK$’'000F i# 7T

Others|—
3,125 Hfth —

Telecommunications
Z5H, 13,291

Computer Telephony:
9,896 BIEFE
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

Year 2002 marked the 10th anniversary of the Company
since our establishment in January 1992. This year
remained challenging and difficult to the Company while
the global and local economic atmosphere is still at the
low side and the continued deflation in the local economy
has further aggravated the investment and spending in
telecommunications infrastructure and information
technology in every industry. Despite the fact that the
market has become more conservative, the Group’s
restructure of the business focus on regional operations
and cost control has brought positive effects to the
company performance. Looking forward, Proactive will
continue to focus on our core business in value-added
applications development and operations in the Greater

China region.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

BEURRE

FHR—ANZF—ARY  EE-TEF -
FHERT BT - BREHRAMEERIRE
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TEFE- PRI BEEESAEZREMBEIA
BLEMEAERSH - #RATHBEEMRE - A
o AEESEEREXFERNEH LB
REG2EHE  SR/REEXEATREANFE
o RERNR  BEASEESIERTELRE
RAENIEXR  BERERZERERRY
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The Group has recorded a
turnover of HK$26,312,000
with a
HK$9,900,000 in 2002,
representing a decrease of
47% and 58% from last
year’s HK$49,355,000 and
HK$23,544,000, respectively.

The Group’s loss before

net loss of

interest, tax, depreciation
and amortization (EBITDA)
was HK$4,111,000 compared
with HK$18,247,000 in the
last year. The loss per share was HK4.3 cents compared
with HK10.1 cents of last year. The cash and bank deposits
of the Group were HK$16.3 million as at 31 December
2002. The Group did not have any long-term borrowings at
the year end date. As at 31 December 2002, the net assets
of the Group is amounted to HK$22,431,000 which

represented the net asset value per share of HK$0.097.

AEBR_ZZ_FF
26,312,0007T & &5 18 4
7 #9,900,0007T -
" X F 2
49,355,0007C M &
23,544,0007T ik 2 47%
K58% o AN B 2 B F)
B BEENERES
BB 4,111,000T © A&
F A A& H18,247,000
7T o BARESIE /43781
mEFAAE10.18 -
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R RBEE RZZTEZE_F+_A=+—8 "
AEBZFEEBEARBME22,431,0007T % T I&E

#0.097 7T ©



1st Quarter

2002

E-ZE

e

HK$'000

TAET

Turnover EEH 7,826

Gross Profit E7 5,063

Gross Profit Margin ERE 65%
Selling and HERTHER

Administration Expenses 6,635

Net loss BE 1,726

EBITDA BRAE - HE
R ERBR 371

With no exception to the overall economy downturn
situation in Hong Kong and most of the Asia Pacific
countries, the market that we serve, namely the
telecommunications service providers and the commercial

information technology sectors, contracted obviously.

This year the local mobile telecommunications market has
reported only a modest expansion. Though mobile data
service, in particular, Short Message Service (SMS) has
become a strong growth area, the contribution from it to
the overall mobile sector is still not comparable as with
voice communications. On the other hand, the number of
fixed telephone lines subscribed in Hong Kong even

dropped in 2002 as compared with 2001.

Since 1997, the local commercial sectors have been
experiencing contraction. The overall climate was still very
vulnerable and no signs of recovery could be seen in the
year 2002. Most of the commercial enterprises have only
a very tight IT budget that can support the company
operation at a minimum level. It was a norm that IT
investment and spending for service and quality

enhancement had only a low or even no priority.

2nd Quarter  3rd Quarter

Annual Report 2002

Year ended

4th Quarter 31 December

2002 2002 2002 2002
BE+=A

Eir=

E-FE E=FE EMEE I35
ZET-f ZZEZHE BT ZEBZCH
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

THET THET THET THET

7,628 6,091 4,767 26,312
5,073 2,613 3,414 16,163
67% 43% 72% 61%
6,909 6,034 5,811 25,389
1,794 3,383 2,997 9,900
413 1,615 1,712 4,111

EARBHEERFEEABMBERADRMANES
W5 - RSB AR R AR I T RSB T8
i 4 4

A RBEATSEAFERISFEMIER - #
SN B BIR AR T (H I A KR AR BR 7% (SMS) A& 1))
BSRYER - Al - RIGBEEBRDEMAER
ZHPIBBR A NGEEBM - B BB _FF
ERMEEEREFAPHBEAL —"ZT—FF

A ANEFR  AEf-—EEHEkE - —F
FToFEBREFERS  RERLIERK
R o RESO BB EEAMETE —ARBEENEAR
KIEERAXNBEELSER  ZERERERMUX
FEXEBENREEL - BLEEFTIREERN
AAREREE R EEMB AR ERERBH
F X B R AP IR
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In spite of the current adverse business environment, we
have observed and identified some potential growth areas
that should bring new opportunities to the Group in 2003.
In the telecommunications sector, the number of
broadband Internet access users increased sharply from
623,302 in December 2001 to 969,355 in November 2002
(sources from OFTA data updated in February 2003), which
represented an annual growth rate approximately 50% in
2002. We believe that this market will continue to grow
in 2003. In addition, the

telecommunications services (both

voice & data services) demand for

between Hong Kong and the
Mainland China has also been
increasing in parallel to the cross
border business activities growth.
With a leading edge in technological
know-how and experience in the
telecommunications sector, the
Group intends capture these potential
market areas and obtain new growth
momentum with appropriate focus on I

those segments.

In the commercial sectors, the demand for technical and
operational support services for inter and intra Greater
China Region network environments has boosted sharply.
With the Group’s strong customer base and years of
technical and operational support experience, the demand
for such services during this wave of China business would
increase and sustain for a substantial period of time. Over
the past two years we have already equipped ourselves
through strategic transformation and restructuring in order

to get well-prepared to support this new market growth.

The Group will further consolidated resources in the
Greater China region, especially in Beijing through a
strategic investment into a joint venture with a subsidiary
of Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited — Beijing Teletron
Systems Integration Company Limited. Leveraging on our
local Beijing partner’s relationship and resources, the
business scope of this JV company would be highly
diversified to cover technology infrastructure and
applications, telecommunications value-added services and
operations, hardware & software distribution and systems
integration and development. The management is very
confident that this JV company would become a growth

engine of the Group in the coming few years.

BRERREHBERS KM ERIIRRBET
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RBZZT=F_AMZ2&N&BE  FAZHIE
EBENABEH-TT—F1+=H2623,302
2R EAZE T _F+—H2969,355 A1
ST -_FEHFEREE50% - RPIRALLTSE
R-TT=FHEEE - I BEEERFE
BARK (BIEFEE RBBRE) Fk  BEEE
7B S ) 38 0w A B
hn e FEEEEE M E
MESREBEMARRE
BEMLER BB
> Emﬁf NEEfE
ﬂﬁ%%#ﬁg il
B RMESFIERS
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EREMSTE - StEARPEMEHAREINZ
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Since our inception the Company has committed to being
proactive and aggressive in exploring new business
opportunities in the areas of telecommunications and
information technologies applications through our
relationship with partners and customers. It is the Group’s
strategy to further intensify the growth of the service
business in order to attain a more stabilised revenue stream
with higher gross margin. We will focus on providing
unique values to our customers with quality and care.

The Group will keep on imposing effective measures in
controlling expenses and cost in order to maximise
operational efficiency. Though the year 2003 will be full
of uncertainties and challenges, we have solid faith to
persistently improve our performance.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2002 (2001:
nil).

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to extend my sincere
gratitude to our customers, suppliers, bankers, investors
and business partners for their continuous co-operation,
support, patronage and confidence in the Group. | would
like to thank my colleagues for their efforts and hard work
over the past year. They have made a significant
contribution to the year’s results.

Tsang Chi Hin, Vincent
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 18 March 2003
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE B 7 [ R
Year ended 31 December
HET-A=T+-HLEFE
1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
—ARANE  -ARKRE ZBTTF -TT-F C-ZI-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Telecommunications £ 15,153 19,649 43,122 31,633 13,291
Computer telephony ERER 6,472 13,174 20,694 17,722 9,896
Others Hth - - - - 3,125
Turnover pexm 21,625 32,823 63,816 49,355 26,312
Gross profit £ 13,340 21,495 36,652 29,882 16,163
Gross profit margin EHE 62% 65% 57% 61% 61%
Operating expenses 2EX M 10,576 14,960 42,765 51,283 25,331
Net profit (loss) wH (B1) 1,691 4,349 (5,925) (23,544) (9,900)
TURNOVER BY ACTIVITIES REBUHEEE D 2EXT
2001 2002
ZEZ-F ZETCF
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %

TRT BOL TRT BOL

Supply, development and Rt HE BRRS

integration of systems REBRF &
and solutions 39,326 80% 17,518 67%
Rental income from HEZERS
leasing of equipment L/ON 5,698 12% 5,128 19%
Maintenance services HERBUBA 4,331 8% 3,666 14%
Turnover BmEEE 49,355 100% 26,312 100%
TURNOVER BY GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION Rt EE 5 2 E X
HK$’000
FH T Australia
PRC 0.1% 17 SN
i 2,241 8%
Taiwan
0.9% 234 &8

Hong Kong
=B 23820 91%




Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

For the year ended 31 December 2002, the Group recorded a
turnover of HK$26,312,000, representing a decrease of 47% as
compared with 2001’s HK$49,355,000. Being affected by the
slowdown of the market, particularly the telecommunications
market, turnover attributable to our telecommunications and
computer telephony businesses decreased by 58% and 44% to
HK$13,291,000 (2001: HK$31,633,000) and HK$9,896,000
(2001: HK$17,722,000), representing 51% and 38% of the
Group’s total turnover in 2002, respectively. The rest, being
11% (2001: nil) or HK$3,125,000 (2001: nil) was attributable
to the trading of Wireless LAN products.

The gross profit for the year under review was about
HK$16,163,000 (2001: HK$29,882,000), representing a
decrease of 46% from last year. However, the gross profit
margin of the Group was maintained at 61% (2001: 61%).
This was because the rental income and maintenance service
fee from both telecommunications and computer telephony
sectors with relatively high gross profit margins were stable,

representing 33% (2001: 20%) of the total Group turnover.

The Group’s general and administrative expenses
(including depreciation) was decreased by 51% to
HK$25,331,000 for the year ended 31 December 2002 as
compared with year 2001 (2001: HK$51,283,000). The

decrease was attributable to the following:

(i) Staff costs and staff related expenses dropped by
approximately HK$13.2 million to HK$12.8
million. The savings were resulted from the Group’s

net headcount reduction and salary reduction since
late 2001;

(ii) As a result of the decrease in the level of the
Group’s operating activities, provisions on bad and

doubtful debts and slow-moving inventories

decreased by nearly HK$2.2 million, as compared
with the year ended 31 December 2001;

Bt 75 B R

AEEREHE_ZZE_F+T_A=1+—HIEFE
SRS R L R A B 26,312,000 0 —TZT—F
2 FEAB49,355,0007T @ NEK47% ° ER™
MAFERAE - HREUBMEAN - £EBZEM
LEEFEFES 2 EEFT DRI T FH58%544%
ZHE 13,291,000 (ZZT T —F : FE
31,633,0007C) K 7 #9,896,0007C (— T T —
& B¥17,722,0007T) EZEE_FREE
BH51%%38% ° A 1% (ZTF—F : )5k
E#3,125,000 (ZFET—F : ) A RHEESR
BEMEREA -

FEBZEMOAEE16,163,000T (ZZTF
— 4 : ##029,882,000T) F LbEETEKT
46% ° AR REBEEMNEEFR61%(ZEE
—F 1 61%) c LB RAEEEEMLREIE
EEFITEAMEARECHERBHS KA R
ERBWA » BEZEFMEBEERS - WAREG
EEBELEREIB%(CEE—F 1 20%) °

AEFEHE_ZTZ_F+_A=+—HIFEZ
— M ERITRER (BETEKRK) L AFRER
D51% = #25,331,00000 (ZEZ —F : B
51,283,0007T) < HAHEE BFEMAT :

(i) HRASEEE T —FFRMABRD
BT ABFETRETE - EIRNAR
HBXE TABEI32BE8TEEE
12.8B 8T ;

(i) ERAREEHEDRD  ARERR
MERBHFERBL T TR
A2 2 E T
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(iii) ~ Operating expenses of regional offices reduced by
about HK$3 million after streamlining the operations

in Taiwan, Singapore and Australia; and

(iv) Other operating expenses reduced as a result of
the implementation of cost control policies. For
example, the Group’s travelling and entertainment
expenses decreased by approximately HK$0.6
million, professional fees (including auditors’
remuneration) decreased by approximately HK$1.4

million.

Resulting from a decrease in operating expenses, the loss
attributable to shareholders of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2002 was decreased by 58% to HK$9,900,000
over the previous year (2001: HK$23,544,000). The percentage

of net loss to turnover was decreased to 38% (2001: 48%).

Hong Kong

As the headquarter, our Hong Kong office supports the
Group’s business in every aspect across the Mainland
China, Taiwan, Hong Kong, and other offices in other
Asian countries. This local market remained as the major
revenue base of the Group which contributed
HK$23,820,000 in revenue representing 91% of the
Group’s total turnover. Revenue from the two core business
divisions, telecommunications and computer telephony in
Hong Kong was HK$13,040,000 representing 50% of
Group’s total turnover, and HK$9,896,000, representing

38% of Group’s total turnover, respectively.

Challenging economical environment persisted from 2001 and
dragged on to 2002 making the Hong Kong operations suffer
from unprecedented difficulties which had not been
encountered before. Under such adverse situation, the Group's
total turnover fell to HK$26,312,000, a drop of 47% as
compared with the previous year’s HK$49,355,000. However,
we have successfully narrowed our operating expenses by
51% and our net loss by 58% from HK$23,544,000 in 2001
to HK$9,900,000 in 2002. Such positive performance
improvement was a result of a series of restructuring and cost
control actions taken in 2002. The streamline exercise on
human resources in the first and third quarter 2002 reduced
the staff cost and related administration expenses significantly
as compared to last year. With only the core and more
experienced team in place in 2002, the productivity per person

increased sharply by more than 90% from last year.
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The local telecommunications market was still
consolidating in 2002. Competition among local fixed and
mobile service providers remained intense. We anticipate
that this consolidation period would be a medium term
scenario. The market indeed required a few years to digest
the over-invested infrastructure capacity from the past few
years during the “economic bubble era”. Customers
demand for new hardware equipment and solutions were
minimum; where most of them only come from natural
wear and tear and operational savings areas. Nevertheless,
investment on new services and capacity expansion among
the whole industry was weak. In order to adapt to this
situation, we have started to transform our operations and
business dynamics to become more service-oriented since
2002 and will continue such transformation into a broader

scope and magnitude in 2003.

The overall local commercial market environment was
still unfavourable in 2002. Almost all commercial sectors
faced the same difficulties last year except some niche
market segments such as travel and tourism. Major
traditional spender sectors on information technology such
as banking and finance, transportation, public utilities and
government were not performing satisfactorily in 2002.
Thus, the demand for our Group’s product and service
was sluggish. Same as the local telecommunications sector,
the drive for demand only came from wear and tear
replacement and operational savings areas. However, the
demand for the Group’s technical and operational services
from existing customers was indispensable. In fact, we
notice that the demand for our cross-border support
services was increase in 2002. We believe our regional
operations, especially with three direct offices in three
major cities of PRC, made a leader in fulfilling customers’
support service demand as compared with other industry

players.

Considering the highly possible on-going economic
downturn in the future, the Group will continue to take
the conservative approach and adopt a highly prudent
operating philosophy to sustain a high level of operational
efficiency. We are confident that the ongoing
rationalisation, streamlining of our operations and
corporate-wide cost control would substantially contribute
to the improvement of our performance in the coming

year.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Beijing, PRC

The Group’s Beijing Representative Office was established
at the end of year 2000. It was then positioned strategically
to help the Group in exploring new business opportunities
in the northern parts of China. As a result of the aggressive
activities in the past two years, we have cultivated and
established a firm network of relationship with the state
governments and commercial sectors in Beijing and the

nearby provinces and cities.

In early 2003, a critical breakthrough
in Beijing was the investment into a joint
venture company, the “Beijing Teletron
Systems Integration Company Limited”
with the commercial vehicle of the
Beijing Municipal People’s Government,
the Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited.
Proactive acquired 40% of the equity of
this new joint venture company, while
the rest are held by Beijing Enterprises
Teletron Information Technology Co.,

Ltd and an independent investor.

The business focus of this joint venture is on the provision
of technology infrastructure and applications,
telecommunications value-added services and operations,
hardware & software distribution, system integration and
development for government and public sectors plus related
commercial enterprises in Beijing and neighborhood regions.
The joint venture has successfully obtained some major
projects and orders from customer in these target sectors
recently. This joint venture company is leaded by a local
business veteran with professional experience and
background in both Beijing and Hong Kong. Currently, the
Beijing team has over 10 staffs and keep on expanding. We
considered that this joint venture company would be a strong

propelling growth engine of the Group in the coming future.

Guangzhou, PRC

In view of the growing demand for support and technical
services between Hong Kong and Mainland China, we
have dedicated resources into the PRC market. In addition
to the direct business offices in Shanghai and Beijing, the
Group has appointed an agent in Guangzhou to deliver
technical and sales support services during the first half
of 2002. With this new support, we have strengthened

our coverage in the Southern part of China.
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On the other hand, to further enhance our technical and
marketing capability, we have entered into a strategic
partnership agreement with Cell Communications
(“Cell”), a

telecommunications research and development institution

Technology Co. Limited leading
in the Guangdong Province. Cell is a spin-off enterprise
of the South China University of Technology which is one
of the leading universities in Mainland China. Pursuant to
this strategic alliance, Proactive and Cell will co-operate
in sales and marketing as well as technology and product
development. By leveraging on the combined marketing
effort and technologies of the two companies, a major
project was awarded from a mobile carrier at late 2002.
Based on this successful alliance, we have jointly
participated in the International Telecom Union (ITU)
Telecom Asia 2002 exhibition in Hong Kong in December
2002 with an objective to promote our technology and
products to both the PRC market and the Asia Pacific
region. Valuable customers’ inputs and demand were
generated from this ITU Telecom Asia 2002 event which
should contribute positive impact to the Group in year
2003.

Other Regions

Proactive Technology (Taiwan) Limited, Proactive’s 60%
owned subsidiary in Taiwan, was established in mid-2001
and became our wholly owned subsidiary in December
2002. Along with the overall down trend environment in
the Taiwan market, the development of our
telecommunications business in Taiwan was slow as well.
There was minimal revenue contribution from the Taiwan
market in 2002. Investment and spending on infrastructure
in the telecommunications sector was modest. However,
the volume of international communications including
voice and data services between Taiwan and PRC was
increasing. The Group’s activities in Taiwan will be
refocused on providing support services in a wider scope
to existing customers that have operations across the

Greater China region.

With the new direction set at the beginning of the year
for the Group to strategically re-focus the business in HK
and China, the plan for setting up regional offices in other
Asia Pacific countries as stated in the prospectus has been
suspended. Though we continued to receive enquiries and
requests on our products and solutions from prospective
customers in other Asian countries during 2002, the
management decided to pursue those potential

opportunities by working closely with formal and informal
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis n

partners locally in each country. The
approach has proven to be an
effective alternative with appropriate
operational scale in serving our
customers with care and quality. This
effective direction and approach will
be maintained in the near future.
However, the management will
continue to keep an opportunistic
outlook in examining those markets
periodically so that will be able to capture every
opportunity stimulated by the gradual economic recovery

in the Asia Pacific region.

PRODUCT RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

In 2002, the Group’s product research and development

focused on three core areas.

In the area of telecommunications product, Proactive has
been putting sufficient resources in enhancing our existing
products’ quality and adding new features to our core
products. We have added various application modules in
our telecommunications core product “GlobalCall” in order
to improve our product’s competitiveness and market
position in the industry. The major areas of product
enhancement were on the network management and switch
management areas. As the telecommunications carriers are
still streamlining their operational efficiency, facilities and
network management requirements have become more
important than before. These newly added features in our
products and solutions will match our customers’ demand
and expectations timely. With our experience and
understanding on the telecommunications industry and
our customer operations, we are confident and committed
to a persistent investment in our product development

enhancement in meeting customers’ demand in the future.

With regards to the computer telephony business, the
Group has enriched our product and technology
competence in IP PBX, IP based event management, new
CTI interface for Avaya system integration and switch
cabling areas. Regular interaction with our client base
has enabled us to keep pace with market trends and
technological developments. We will expand the Group’s
product portfolio by launching higher return, more

innovative and market-oriented products for customers.

In 2002, the Group also actively looked into the wireless

IP service market where some potential business
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opportunities were identified. We have successfully
developed and deployed the first multimedia service
platform which offers an integrated voice IDD, IP data
and mobile service by teaming up with a fixed network
service provider and mobile operators in Hong Kong during
the ITU Telecom Asia 2002 Exhibition in December 2002.
The newly deployed product and technology was well

recognized and received by the industry.

Moving into 2003, the Group will continue its commitment
to technology development and product enhancement.
However, in facing persistently unfavourable environment
in the telecommunications market, the Group’s strategic
focus is to develop new IT & telecommunications
integrated applications in generating unique business value
to accomplish the unidentified needs of the market in
Hong Kong and in China. The management believes that
this move will generate positive results within the year
2003, and significantly broaden Proactive’s business

perspectives and opportunities in the future.

In the technology industry, strategic alliances and
partnerships is an integral part of the business as it
generates opportunities by amalgamating technology from
different areas in delivering our unique business values.
Proactive has a long history in working with leading
technology partners in enabling business applications and
solutions for customers in the telecommunications and
commercial sectors. Apart from those already well-
established solid relationships with key technology
partners, the Group has forged some other major alliances

with new technology partners in 2002.

In the second quarter of 2002, Proactive has entered into
a strategic partnerships agreement with Cell
Communications Technology Co. Ltd (“Cell”), a leading
telecommunications research and development institution
in the Guangdong Province, PRC. Cell is a spin-off
enterprise of the South China University of Technology
which is one of the leading universities in Mainland China.
Pursuant to this strategic alliance, Proactive and Cell will
co-operate in sales and marketing as well as technology
and product development. Through this strategic alliance,
we have greatly enhanced our technology development
and application deliverables and further embedded with
cost advantages. In addition, we have a strong sales and
marketing partner in penetrating the China

telecommunications market.
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The Group also entered into an alliance agreement with
Harbour Networks Company Limited (“Harbour Network”)
in the third quarter. Operating across China with 28 offices,
Harbour Networks is a leading technology company funded
by US venture capital with research, development and
manufacturing centre in Beijing, PRC. Harbour Networks
focuses on broadband IP technologies and market with
innovation and technical competence in creating values to
customers. In parallel with the vision of Harbour Networks,
Proactive can deliver innovative products and solutions in
creating unique business values to our customers in the

broadband IP related markets in future.

Proactive became a 3Com Voice Solution Partner “VSP”
in the last quarter of 2002. 3Com was founded in 1979
with the creation of the Ethernet standard and is the world’s
leading technology company in LAN and networking field.
In view of the growing demand for network based and IP
based voice communications for commercial applications,
the Group co-operated with 3Com in introducing the
network and IP based voice technology and product in
the Hong Kong and PRC markets. The technology
converges the voice and data infrastructure into one single
network and delivers incomparable benefits and values to
customers under multi-locations and distributed business
environments. The growth of business activities between
Hong Kong and PRC is obvious, and the demand for cross
border communications for commercial sectors is
increasing tremendously. The network and IP base
technology is a perfect means in fulfilling this requirement

with the right match of quality and cost.

The Group also signed reseller agreements with a number
of system integration companies and resellers in PRC for
distributing its products and solutions in China in 2002.
With the alliances and partnerships attained, we effectively
extended our business and support coverage in China
which is expected to bring positive impact on our business

performance in 2003 and beyond.

2002 was a tough year for our company and indeed, for
the entire telecommunications and IT industry. The impacts
of changes we had been through in the industry: decline
of revenue and market value, contraction in available
capital, business failures, and industry consolidation, were
unprecedented. It is clear that many those market
movements of 2002 were not temporary setbacks which
could be cured by the mere passage of time; rather they
reflected the new market realities that would shape the

future of the telecommunications and IT industry.
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In general, telecommunications operators continued to
struggle with heavy debt loans and their business models
being challenged by declining prices on traditional voice
services, substitution from lower-cost data services, and
also requirement of new technology investments to reduce
operating costs and create new, high value services. In
the commercial IT market, customers were also looking
for ways to reduce their operating expenses through
streamline on the logistics support structure and shifting
of the operation base from high cost location, such as
Hong Kong to low cost location like cities in China.
But it has been clear that capital spending on
telecommunications and IT applications would be
necessary to support the customers’ businesses. And in
particular, it would be earmarked for those projects and
applications where there is a compelling return on
investment from cost reductions and increase demand and
revenues from innovative and effective service offerings

in future.

Where’s the Growth

Looking ahead, we are optimistic about our industry, it
remains among the most dynamic and vital industry in
the business in our world. Modern communications
services are essential ingredients of modern life in the
developed and in the developing world, they are basic
elements of our economic and social progress. IT
applications are the core technology of automation and
productivity gain for all economic sectors in the modern
business world. The search of productivity improvement
and added-value brought from IT technology applications
will continue in parallel with human activities. In light of
this belief, we are prepared to take the Company to ride

the next wave in the following areas:

. Beijing Focus

o The Growing China Market

o Service Oriented Direction

o Innovation for Business Value

Beijing Focus

This Beijing business has been providing a very bright
outlook for the Group since our investment into the joint
venture in 2003. Backing up from the solid partnership
with our counterpart, Beijing Enterprises Holdings, we have

been uncovering several major market opportunities in
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the Government and Public Utilities sectors. Beijing is
undoubtedly under the spotlight for the next five years
due to the Olympic Games 2008 and also a series of
infrastructure projects pertinent to the upgrade of this
Capital City into a place where the world’s political and
economic leaders concentrated. Our Beijing business is
well positioned as an “Unique Value Application Enabler”
for the various industries over there based on our
experience and long exposure to successful technology

business models.

The Growing China Market

As a well recognised fact, the Mainland China is becoming
the most promising economic hub in this century; and in
the progress of national economic development, the
demand for products, services, information technology and
telecommunications facilities for automation and
productivity gain will be tremendously increasing in the
long term. With the added favourable factors raised from
the opening of the telecommunications market, business
opportunities and potentials are huge. The Group will
continue to focus on the development of China market
aiming to build up solid business operations over there

with good returns in the coming few years.

Service Oriented Direction

Today, we all realised that during the “economic bubble
era”, over-investment in telecommunications infrastructure
from service providers and commercial applications from
the end-users were some serious phenomena. As a result,
demand for new products and solutions was minimal
unless the then supply was consumed. However, to keep
an enterprise in operation, the investment in service to
support the operation even in a minimal scenario is
inevitable. In order to meet the business requirement for
quality and achievement of key deliverables on the one
hand and also to maintain operational savings on the other,
we have identified that the trend for service and operation
outsourcing in both service provider sector and general
commercial sectors has been increasing. Therefore to meet
this increasing demand, we are refining our position from
not only a product and technology provider in the past
and evolve to become a service-based company who
delivers a total service to our customers. We believe that
this will bring a positive impact to the Group’s

performance in 2003.
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Innovation for Business Value

Traditionally, technology companies act as facilitators for
the end user enterprises in different commercial industries
to leverage technology in generating revenue, enabling
business transactions and saving costs. However, the
current tough economic environment has made businesses
to contract in nearly every industry sector. Such difficult
situations drive every player in the market to compete
with each other by trimming profit or even negative
margin. This vicious cycle would only stop when the
market reached equilibrium where quantity demanded well
matched with quantity supplied in that industry. This is a
natural but painful process for the capitalist economy. In
the telecommunications and information technology
industries, this cycle has been rolling since the burst of
technology bubble in 2001. A possible way for the Group
to escape from the cycle is to create new and innovative
business value to our customers enabling them to improve
their revenue and profitability, so that in return stimulating
new demand for our products and services. We are
working actively and closely with technology partners and
customers to create new business values and therefore to

attain positive results in 2003.

Total assets REE

Total liabilities eaf
Working capital LEES

Cash and bank deposit Re RFITHER
Short-term bank borrowings EHRTER
Debt to equity ratio BEHERLE
Gearing ratio BARBRALE

During 2002, the Group was principally financed by cash
flow generated internally together with the balance of

proceeds from IPO and short-term bank borrowings.

As at 31 December 2002, the Group had consolidated net
current assets of approximately HK$15,292,000 (2001:
HK$19,249,000). Cash and bank deposits stood at
approximately HK$16.3 million as at 31 December 2002,
or cash per share of HK$0.07, of which approximately
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2001 2002 Change
-£E-5  -EE=fF 2t
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET
47,521 33,478 -29%
14,822 11,047 -26%
19,249 15,292 -19%
23,483 16,305 -31%
1,177 3,651 +210%
0.46x 0.49x
0.001x 0.000x
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HK$10.5 million and HK$4.7 million were denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars
respectively. The remaining HK$1.1 million was
denominated in other currencies. The total short-term bank
borrowings was approximately HK$3,651,000 and the
gearing ratio, measured on the basis of total non-current
liabilities to total assets less current liabilities, was 0 times
(2001: 0.001 times).

As at 31 December 2002, the Group had capital
commitment of about HK$0.4 million in respect of equity

investment (2001: nil).

The Directors are of opinion that, the Group has sufficient

working capital for its present requirements.

As at 31 December 2002, the Group had aggregate banking
facilities of approximately HK$6,200,000 (2001:
HK$13,000,000) from several banks for overdrafts, loans,
and trade financing, which were secured by pledge of the
Group’s time deposits of about HK$5,000,000 (2001:
HK$5,892,000) at banks. Unutilised facilities as at the
same date amounted to approximately HK$2,371,000
(2001: HK$11,671,000). The Group did not have any

charges on other assets as at 31 December 2002.

On 16 December 2002, the Group acquired 40 per cent
holding of the issued ordinary share capital of Proactive
Technology (Taiwan) Limited, a 60 per cent held subsidiary
of the Group in Taiwan just before the acquisition at
HK$454,000. In this connection, the goodwill acquired of
HK$95,000 was written off in the financial statement upon
the acquisition. As at 31 December 2002, Proactive
Technology (Taiwan) Limited, was a wholly-owned

subsidiary of the Group.

On 31 December 2002, Proactive Technology Limited
entered into a sales and purchase agreement in relation to
the disposal of the entire 33-1/3 per cent equity interest
in Proactive Cyberspace Company Limited to an
independent third party at HK$1,500,000. In connection
to the disposal of an associate, the Group recognised a
loss of HK$187,000 in year ended 31 December 2002.

Saved as disclosed above, there were no material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries during the year

review.
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The reporting currency adopted by the Group was Hong
Kong dollars. Majority of the Group’s sales, receivables,
bank borrowings and expenditures were denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars. As Hong
Kong dollars is closely linked with United States dollars,
therefore, foreign currency exposure to the Group shall

be minimal.

As at 31 December 2002, the Group had no contingent
liabilities (2001: nil).

The Group (excluding its associate) had approximately 36
full-time employees in Hong Kong, and elsewhere in the
PRC, Australia, Singapore and Taiwan as at 31 December
2002. During the year ended 31 December 2002, the
Group had incurred staff costs (including directors’

emoluments) of approximately HK$12,813,000.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 3 May 2000
by all shareholders of the Company, the Company has
adopted a Share Option Scheme pursuant to which options
may be granted to full time employees (including executive
directors) of the Group to subscribe for shares in the

Company.

Termination to the Share Option Scheme and adoption of
New Share Option Scheme were approved by the
shareholders of the Company at a special general meeting
held on 13 November 2002 in order to comply with the
new requirements of Chapter 23 of the GEM Listing Rules
effected on 1 October 2001. No share option has been
granted under the New Share Option Scheme as at 31
December 2002. The options already granted under the

Share Option Scheme are unaffected.

As at 31 December 2002, six employees had completed
the required number of years of service under the
Employment Ordinance to be eligible for long service
payments on termination of their employment with the
Group. The Group is only liable to make such payments
where termination meets the required circumstances
specified in the Employment Ordinance. As at 31
December 2002, the estimated amount not provided for

such purpose amounted to approximately HK$621,000.
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As announced in the announcement of the Company dated
5 November 2002, certain scheduled business plans of
the Group are pending. The following is a summary of
actual business progress of the Group compared with the
business objectives set out in the Company’s Prospectus

for the six-month period ended 31 December 2002.

Scheduled achievements as stated in the Prospectus for
six-month period ended 31 December 2002

ERERRNFBBE_ZEZE_F+=-A=+—HL~EA
HENFTETR2EE

Telecommunications product development and

enhancement

BAERHARERAR

1. Launch the IP gatekeeper switch product

HEH PR B BR SRR E

2. Launch the GlobalCall IN service node which runs

on LINUX environment

#EH ELINUXIR 3% T i 17 2 GlobalCall INAR 75 &7 25

3. Continue the development of softswitch media

gateway product

BERRBAXRABERRER

BEARTIRZZEZT_F+—ARERASHIHAR
i NREBCDEEE TEBTE - AEBREF
HEEREBETRIANAAFNERER 2 EB
EEMLEMT -

Actual business progress/change in business
objective (if any), during the six-month
period ended 31 December 2002

BE_Z2Z_S+-A=t—-HIL<EAH

BMWEREBEE *XBEE2HE (0
")
1. The development of IP gatekeeper

switch product was pending due to
the decline in market demand. The
management will evaluate the market
situation in 2003 and reconsider to
commence the development.
ENRTISFRRD  BEIPERIZH
EMZHAM - RZZEZT=F  ~E£EE
BRIETISER - BHEEEMMEE
B o

2. Due to the fact that the technology
pick up by LINUX was far beyond the
Group’s expectation, the development
of GlobalCall IN service node which
runs on LINUX environment was
therefore suspended.

ERLINUXH TR - EE T RAE
Mz HE - BUEEREAELINUXRET
{17 Z GlobalCall INR 7 &0 2 o

3. Pending due to the decline in market
demand. The management will
evaluate the market situation and may
start the development if customer
request for such product.
HATISEFERED  EERFPFENLSE
Em AKREBEHFIHETHERLS

FHMEZEER °



Scheduled achievements as stated in the Prospectus for

six-month period ended 31 December 2002

ERERRNFBBE_ZEZE_F+=-A=+—HL~EA
HENFTETR2EE

Computer telephony product development and enhancement

BENEHAERMRRUR

1. Launch the automatic speech recognition

technology that supports Malay

HEH R B RPI G XX 2 B B 5 5 PSRl

2. Continue the development of automatic speech
recognition technology that supports other

languages

BERBRXEEMEX 28BS HERIN

3. Continue the development of an IP based PBX
product

H BRI LAIP BER ZPBXE @

4. Launch Malay character support call centre

products for Asia Pacific countries

RDARREHXESRASXFHFZEREZEF O
=
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Actual business progress/change in business
objective (if any), during the six-month
period ended 31 December 2002

BE-_ZZ_F+-A=+—HLEXEAH

BMHWEREBEE *XBEE2HE (0
")
1. The plan to develop the automatic

speech recognition technology that
supports Malay was cancelled due to
the decline in market demand. The
management will evaluate the market
situation in Malaysia after 2003.
MATISEFRFED  EBUEREXES
P X 2z BBGES HERM 25 E
ERERN _ZZE=FREFNFEHHER
PGB IHIER

2. To reduce costs, the Group will resell
the products developed by other
technology partner instead of
developing its own.

RTBERE  AEBESEEHE MK
MgHERmEZEBER  ~EATTH
2% o

3. The Group will use technology from
other partners rather than developing
its own product.
AEESRAREBRMBHEREZME
BER  TEafTME -

4. The plan to develop the automatic

speech recognition technology that
supports Malay was cancelled due to
the decline in market demand. The
management will evaluate the market
situation in Malaysia after 2003.

MATSERERFED  EBUEREXES
RPGEE X 2 B B Y R 2 5 A
ERERN _ZZ=FREFNFEHTS

B -
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Scheduled achievements as stated in the Prospectus for

six-month period ended 31 December 2002

ERERRNFBBE_ZEZE_F+=-A=+—HL~EA
HENFTETR2EE

MIAA services development and enhancement

MIAASR 7% B 5 K X R

1. Enhance the MIAA Services with GPRS technology

compliance interface support

FATF & GPRSE T 57 T 2 1% 2K 28 MIAARR 75

2. Commence the development of the MIAA Services

based on G3 technology
EF S = R 2 MIAABR 75

3. Establish strategic alliance with regional partners
to expand market coverage of the MIAA Services
B[ I 1% B ERE HE B S SRR B BR - A RMIAA R TS
2 EEHE

Actual business progress/change in business
objective (if any), during the six-month
period ended 31 December 2002

BE-_ZZ_F+-A=+—HLEXEAH

BMHWEREBEE *XBEE2HE (0
")
1. Development of MIAA Services was

pending due to the high uncertainties
in WAP and related mobile Internet
technology market. The Group is
waiting for the MMS and 3G
technology and network to be mature,
which is expected to be by 2005, and
will re-evaluate the benefits of
development of MIAA Services on
other interfaces.

ERWAP - AR B E 5E B A B &
TS THAREZ - NEBEERMGFTE
TERAFRAZMMSK E = R R 48
i WE R ZEMIAAIRTS £ H R H L
ol

2. Please refer to the above.

BLRUAE -

3. Please refer to the above.

BLRUAE -



Scheduled achievements as stated in the Prospectus for

six-month period ended 31 December 2002

RERBAFBBEZ-_ZZ-_F+-A=+—BLKEA
HENFTETR2EE

Market penetration
58 E

1. Set up regional offices in Indonesia

FEENE fe v 55 3R 5L (@ 18 9t SR B

2. Continue the marketing activities for the Group’s
products by organising workshops and participating
in trade exhibitions in Asia Pacific region
FERETAMREBATER2NESRESEEE
TTAREBE G2 M5 RS

Resources employment

B ER

1. Employ two additional staffs for each of its research
and development centres in Hong Kong and

Australia

DBl A RN B RO Z B 5T R F B DR EE R A

7 Bl &
B8

2. Employ additional staffs for the Group’s operation
RAEEZEEEREZME
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Actual business progress/change in business
objective (if any), during the six-month
period ended 31 December 2002

BEE-ZZ _F+-A=1+—-HLA~EAH

BMHWEREBEE *XBEE2HE (0
")
1. The Group has temporarily suspended

our regional expansion plan due to
the market downturn in the region.
The Group will reconsider setting up
other regional offices when the
economic environment in the region
improves.

ARRAGERE  AKBETEANS
B8 ERARRNTEE - AKE
EEHERRLAEMREMBER -

2. The Company has participated in the
ITU Telecom Asia 2002 Exhibition in
Hong Kong in December 2002.
RARRB2E T _F+-ARER
EPEITU Asia B & -

1. Due to the market downturn in the
region, the Group will delay its plan
to employ additional staff until the

market improves.

EREACERR  AEBRETFEER
B2ZFE BEEWREE -

2. Please refer to the above.
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HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
Units 2009-2018, 20th Floor

Shui On Centre

6-8 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. TSANG Chi Hin, Vincent, aged 44, is the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer of Proactive. He is the
co-founder of the Group and is responsible for corporate
strategic planning and management. Mr. Tsang holds a
bachelor degree in economics and a higher certificate in
electronic engineering with over 17 years of experience
in telecommunications and electronic industries. Mr. Tsang
started his marketing career in 1984 and was a marketing
engineer in National Semiconductor Hong Kong Limited
in 1985 responsible for regional marketing. He then joined
Hongkong Telecom as a consultant in marketing data
communication services in 1987 and his last position in

Hongkong Telecom was Account Director.

Mr. LAM Kim Chau, Derek, aged 41, is the co-founder
He is

responsible for regional business development and new

and the Chief Technology Officer of Proactive .

technologies procurement. Mr. Lam is a chartered electrical
engineer in the United Kingdom, member of the Hong
Kong Computer Society, British Computer Society and
Institution of Electrical Engineers. He has over 18 years of
experience in the telecommunications industry and holds
a masters degree in telecommunications from the
University of Essex. He has worked for Cathay Pacific
Airways as a communications engineer and Hongkong
Telecom as a consultant providing advisory services in
data and communication networking for enterprises in

Hong Kong.

Mr. LAU Kai Shun, Barry, aged 42, is the Chief Operating
Officer of Proactive. He joined Proactive in 1995 and is
responsible for day-to-day general management and
business development of the Group in Hong Kong.
Mr. Lau holds a masters degree in business administration
and a higher diploma in production and industrial
engineering. He has over 11 years of experience in the
telecommunications and information technology industries.
Prior to joining Proactive, Mr. Lau worked as a corporate
sales account manager in Hongkong Telecom for over

five years.
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Mr. Wong Wai-Ho, aged 53, joined Proactive in August
1999 and is the Finance Director of Proactive, in charge
of the Group’s financial affairs. He is also Director of
Anco Computer (H.K.) Company Limited and Prospects
Investment Development (HK) Limited. Mr. Wong
graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with
a bachelor degree majoring in accounting in 1971. Mr.
Wong has over 28 years experience, of which 14 years
were in direct investment. He had been appointed by
Jardine Fleming as Associate Director, Kleiwort Benson as
Director and Advent International Corp. as Managing
Director. Prior to that, he has worked with the Hong Kong
Trade Development Council (HKTDC) responsible for the
promotion of Hong Kong’s external trade for 13 years.
Mr. Wong currently is a director of The Chinese History
& Culture Educational Foundation and a member of the
Board of Trustees, Chung Chi College, The Chinese
University of Hong Kong.

Mr. PONG Kam Wah, aged 42, is the Chief Software
Architect of Proactive. He joined Proactive in June 2000
and is responsible for product research and development
of the Group. Mr. Pong holds a masters degree in
electronic engineering and is a member of the Institution
of Electrical Engineers as well as a Chartered Professional
Engineer of the Institution of Engineers, Australia. He has
19 years of experience in the telecommunications industry,
including 8 years of experience in telecommunications
software development. Mr. Pong has worked in a number
of large telecommunications companies, including
Hongkong Telecom, Fujitsu, Alcatel and Hutchison

Telecom.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. CHOW Dah Jen, David, aged 42, was appointed non-
executive Director in August 2000. Mr. Chow is currently
the Managing Director of Pacific Venture Group, one of
the largest venture capital firms in Taiwan. He is a member
of the American Bar Association and has extensive
experience in legal practices and venture capital financing
in both Taiwan and the US. He has worked with Morgan,
Lewis & Bokius and McCutchen, Doyle, Brown & Enersen,
and was appointed by Microtek International, Inc., a listed
technology company in Taiwan, as general counsel. Mr.
Chow graduated from School of Law, Soochow University,
Taiwan and received his Masters degree in Law at Harvard

Law School.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YANG Zhenhan, aged 70, was appointed independent
non-executive Director in February 2000. Mr. Yang is a
machine-building specialist with over 30 years of
experience. For more than 10 years he had been a director
and chief engineer of a large machine-building factory,
employing over 10,000 staff. In addition, Mr. Yang was
Director of Foreign Economic Relations and Trade
Commission of Shanghai Municipality. In October 1985,
Mr. Yang established the South East Economic Information
Centre in Hong Kong, and was appointed as Vice
Chairman. Mr. Yang is currently the Chairman of a

consultancy company in Hong Kong.

Ms. WU Suk Ching, Annie, aged 54, was appointed
independent non-executive Director in February 20000.
Ms. Wu is an independent non-executive director of ING
Beijing Investment Company Limited, a listed company in
Hong Kong. She is also a member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Committee, a member of the Hong
Kong Trade Development Council China Advisory
Subcommittee, Vice Chairman of the All China Federation
of Industry & Commerce, Vice Chairman of the Chinese
Foreign Enterprises Association and Chairman of the
Women Entrepreneurs Association in China. Ms. Wu holds
a bachelor degree in business administration from

Armstrong University.

Mr. Robert Brainin ISSENMAN, aged 53, was appointed
independent non-executive Director in February 2000. Mr.
Issenman is currently the President and Chief Executive
Officer of Leader Auto Resources LAR Inc., the Executive
Vice President of the Invaplan group of companies, and a
member of the law firm Davies Ward Philips & Vineberg.
He has held executive positions on a number of
professional organisations or bodies including International
Young Lawyers Association and was co-founder and
National President of the Hong Kong-Canada Business
Association and sits on several public and private board
of directors. Mr. Issenman is a barrister and solicitor and
holds a bachelor degree in Arts and a bachelor degree in

civil laws.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LAl Kar Leung, Vincent, aged 34, is the General
Manager of Proactive. He joined the Group in June 2000
and is responsible for the general management in Hong
Kong and provides support to the regional operations. Mr.
Lai graduated from the University of Hong Kong in 1991
and started his career in the telecommunications and
networking industries by joining Hongkong Telecom. He
moved to Shanghai in 1995 working for Ascom Timeplex
in charge of Central China sales. Prior to joining Proactive,
Mr. Lai held regional and global sales management
positions with Telstra Corporation and UUJNET

respectively.

Mr. Chan Kin Chung, Donny, aged 37, is the Operation
Director of Proactive. He joined the Group in December
2000 and is mainly responsible for operation and sales.
He holds a degree in engineering from Loughborough
University of Technology and has over 11 years of
experience of in the the telecommunications industry and
information technology. Prior to joining Proactive, Mr.
Chan held the Greater China regional sales position with
Periphonics, Nortel Networks Company from 1997 to
2000. Mr. Chan has extensive experience in customer
services and sales through his past experience from

Hongkong Telecom.
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The Directors have the pleasure of presenting the annual
report together with the audited financial statements of
Proactive Technology Holdings Limited (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2002.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in investment holding,
design, development and sale of value-added
telecommunication products and computer telephony

products.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by product range and
by geographical area, together with their respective loss
contributable to shareholders for the year ended 31

December 2002 is as follows:

a. By product range

EEREREAMBERER AR ([ARF)) &
HWBAR([AEBDBE-_FFT_F+-A=
T-BLEFENFRNERAKREZE -

FTEXEK
BRARER—REERAR - AEBMEEEBER
ﬁ‘ﬁ%&ﬁ%g@%ﬂim&EWQEEW'

AEBREBEMAREN -

REERBE—EE—F+—A=+—HAILEE
RE SR RME DM L H e YRR
FEMEB RO T

a. REGER
Profit (Loss)
attributable to

Turnover shareholders

EEH BREML R (EB)

HK$’000 HK$’000

TET TET

Telecommunications B 13,291 5,880
Computer telephony BEREH 9,896 1,947
Others Hity 3,125 129
Unallocated AHHE - (17,856)
26,312 (9,900)

b. By geographical area* b. R E D A

Loss

attributable to

Turnover shareholders

EEE BRELESR

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET

Hong Kong o 23,820 8,786
China H 2,241 569
Taiwan ak 234 441
Australia M 17 6
Singapore g = 98
26,312 9,900

* Turnover by geographical location is determined on * MR D S EREREE P 2 & S

the basis of the location of customers’ activities.

a7 -
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CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2002, the five largest
customers accounted for approximately 40% of the Group's
total turnover and the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for approximately 94% of the Group’s total
purchases. The largest customer of the Group accounted
for approximately 11% of the Group’s total turnover while
the largest supplier accounted for approximately 39% of

the Group’s total purchases.

None of the directors, their associates, or any shareholders
(which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had a beneficial

interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31
December 2002 are set out in the consolidated income

statement on page 48 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final

dividend and recommend that the accumulated loss of
approximately HK$33,329,000 as at 31 December 2002

be carried forward.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in share capital and share options
of the Company are set out in Notes 21 and 22,

respectively, to the accompanying financial statements.

RESERVES AND ACCUMULATED LOSS

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in Statements of Changes in
Equity on page 53 of this annual report. Movements in
accumulated loss of the Group during the year are set out
in the Consolidated Income Statement on page 48 of this

annual report.

The Company had no reserves available for distribution
to shareholders as at 31 December 2002 (2001 — Nil).
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EFETER W%i—??—ﬁ+ A=+—8~
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
shares during the year ended 31 December 2002 and up
to the date of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the

Company’s Bye-laws and the laws in Bermuda.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATE

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries and associate
are set out in Notes 12 and 13 to the accompanying

financial statements.

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in machinery and equipment during
the year are set out in Note 10 to the accompanying

financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings as at 31 December 2002
are set out in Note 18 to the accompanying financial

statements.

PENSION SCHEMES

Details of the pension schemes are set out in Note 27 to

the accompanying financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

No charitable donation was made by the Group during
the year (2001: Nil).

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Saved as those related party transactions disclosed in Note
3 to the accompanying financial statements, there were
no other transactions which need to be disclosed as
connected transactions under Chapter 20 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange (“the GEM Listing Rules”).

BE - HEREDRKRHD
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors who held office during the year and up to

the date of this report are:

Executive directors

Mr. Tsang Chi Hin
Mr. Lam Kim Chau
Mr. Lau Kai Shun, Barry
Mr. Wong Wai Ho
Mr. Pong Kam Wah

Non-executive director

Mr. Chow Dah-jen, David

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Yang Zhenhan
Ms. Wu Suk Ching, Annie

Mr. Robert Brainin Issenman

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, Mr.
Pong Kam Wah, Mr. Chow Dah-jen David and Mr. Lam
Kim Chau will retire from office and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election.

Each of the executive directors of the Company has entered
into a service contract with the Company for an initial
term of three years commencing from 25 February 2000
in the cases of Mr. Tsang Chi Hin, Mr. Lam Kim Chau,
Mr. Lau Kai Shun, Barry, and Mr. Wong Wai Ho, and for
an initial term of two years commencing from 1 August
2000 in the case of Mr. Pong Kam Wah. The service
contracts shall continue thereafter until terminated by
either party giving the other not less than three months’

notice after the expiration of the said initial fixed term.

EXTERESRBEN

AMBEFEEMBEARSARIENESS
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS” SERVICE CONTRACTS

(Continued)

Each of the non-executive directors of the Company has
entered into a service contract with the Company for an
initial term of two years commencing from 28 February
2000 in the cases of Mr. Yang Zhenhan, Ms. Wu Suk
Ching, Annie and Mr. Robert Brainin Issenman, and 1
August 2000 in the case of Mr. Chow Dah-jen, David.
The service contracts shall continue thereafter until
terminated by either party giving the other not less than
three months’ notice after the expiration of the said initial

fixed term.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory

compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2002 the interests of the directors and
their respective associates in the shares of Company and
its associated corporations as recorded in the register
maintained under Section 29 of the Securities (Disclosure
of Interests) Ordinance (“SDI Ordinance”) of the Company
or which required, pursuant to Rules 5.40 to 5.59 of the
GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the

Stock Exchange were as follows:

ETERESERBEASHN (H)

BN TEFCRARFRITLRBEAL  HIRE
L4 MRENMARERAEENAGNB -ZT
TE_RA-1/\BRH - SREME - AAESE
ENEHB_ZETTFN\A ALK AHEMm
FoMBAHNETAEY BEEdEF -SRI
Rk e

ZERNEEERNBRRBFREhEEETD
EEEARFREEAME R FLEET LN —4F
MR IEf ZBEHEENRE A D (B —REER
B -

EEHROVES

RZZZE_F+_A=1+—8  BERAQARESF
#F (BT G0 (BRG] £29&7F
BErETMpas  ERERESSTEIHEAL
RARA REBENR G 2w - SR F
ARG BRI A AIZERE S T RA (T8I Zk
EWRA) % 5.40E5.59 R EBMEARNQ A K&
BT T

Number of Shares of the Company

FR¥E

Percentage

Personal Family  Corporate Other of shares

Name of directors interests interests interest interest Total outstanding
BEspng /28 EARZ B#Ez  AF#E  He#z BE BEALNE
Mr. Tsang Chi Hin BERLE 52,415,466 = = — 52,415,466 22.593%
Mr. Lam Kim Chau Mk 5 52,415,466 = = — 52,415,466 22.593%
Mr. Lau Kai Shun, Barry 25 %4 37,382,664 = = — 37,382,664 16.113%
Mr. Wong Wai Ho BEZAE 10,210,688 = = — 10,210,688 4.401%
Mr. Pong Kam Wah BERELE 5,000,000 = = - 5,000,000 2.155%
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (Continued)

Other than disclosed above, as at 31 December 2002
neither the directors nor their associates, had any interests
in any securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as defined in the SDI Ordinance, and neither
the directors nor any of their spouses or children under
the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities
of the Company, or had exercised any such right during

the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURE

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 3
May 2000 (“Share Option Scheme”), pursuant to which it
may grant options to employees (including executive
directors) of the Group to subscribe for shares in the
Company. Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, options
were granted on 30 June 2000 to the executive directors
and other employees of the Group to subscribe for an
aggregate of 19,420,000 shares in the Company at a price
of HK$1.30 per share, during the option period from 1
July 2003 to 30 June 2010. As a result of the cessation of
employment of certain grantees, 5,860,000 share options

granted had lapsed since date of grant.

Pursuant to resolutions at a special general meeting of the
shareholders held on 13 November 2002, the Company
terminated the Share Option Scheme and adopted a new
share option scheme (“New Share Option Scheme”) in
order to comply with the new requirements of Chapter 23
of the GEM Listing Rules effected on 1 October 2001. As
at 31 December 2002, no share option has been granted
under the New Share Option Scheme. The option already

granted under the Share Option Scheme are unaffected.

Details of the Share Option Scheme and the New Share
Option Scheme are set out in Note 22 to the accompanying

financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURE (Continued)

As at 31 December 2002, the share options granted to

and held by the directors of the Company are as follows:

Date of grant

EETBEROIESFOERN (E)

HE_ZTZ-_F+-A=+—H ARAESFH
BIMARITEN ST BERREDT

Number of share
options at
Subscription beginning and

price per share end of the year

Name BEspng /48 KTAH BRITEER EOREEHBRERE

Mr. Tsang Chi Hin ZERELE 30 June 2000 HK$1.30 1,000,000
“ZZTERA=TH 1307

Mr. Lam Kim Chau MBI 5% £ 30 June 2000 HK$1.30 1,000,000
“ZZTERA=TH 1307

Mr. Lau Kai Shun, Barry RMELE 30 June 2000 HK$1.30 1,000,000
“ZETERA=TH 1307

Mr. Wong Wai Ho BEZAE 30 June 2000 HK$1.30 1,000,000
“ZETERA=TH 1307

Mr. Pong Kam Wah ERELLE 30 June 2000 HK$1.30 5,800,000
“ZETERA=TH 1307

9,800,000

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or holding
companies a party to any arrangements to enable any of
the Company’s directors or members of its management
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debt securities (including debentures) of, the
Company or any other body corporate and none of the
directors, their spouse or their children under the age 18,
had any right to subscribe for the securities of the

company, or had exercised any such right during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in Note 3 to the accompanying financial
statements, if any, no contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which any of the
Company’s directors or members of its management had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted

at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

B ECREESN  EAFEHME - NAR IR
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2002, according to the register of
substantial shareholders required to be maintained under
Section 16(1) of the SDI Ordinance, the Company has
been notified of the following interests, being 10% or

more of the issued capital of the Company:

FERR

MNEIZEE_F+-_A=+—H BREREERK
PIET6MEREATHFENTIERREMNE
B RAAREMEUTRHERRF0%HALE
BITRANERERNT

Number of

issued shares Percentage holding

Name RREE /B8 RHEE EREALOE
Mr. Tsang Chi Hin ZERELE 52,415,466 22.593%
Mr. Lam Kim Chau MBI 5% £ 52,415,466 22.593%
Mr. Lau Kai Shun, Barry ARMEEE 37,382,664 16.113%

Save as disclosed above, the Company had no notice of
any interests to be recorded under Section 16(1) of the
SDI Ordinance as at 31 December 2002.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or the management shareholders of
the Company (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had
an interest in business which competes or may compete

with the business of the Group.

SPONSOR’S INTEREST

As at 31 December 2002, neither Deloitte & Touche
Corporate Finance Ltd (“Deloitte”) nor its directors or
employees or associates, had any beneficial interest in
the Company’s share capital. Pursuant to the agreement
dated 29 May 2001 entered into between the Company
and Deloitte, Deloitte has received a fee for acting as the
Company’s retained sponsor for the period from 29 May
2001 to 31 December 2002.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company was entered into or existed during

the year.
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BOARD PRACTICE AND PROCEDURES

The Company has complied with the board practice and
procedures as set out in rule 5.28 to 5.39 of the GEM
Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December
2002.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the
Group announced in previous years are set out on page

87 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee on 3
May 2000 and has formulated its written terms of reference
in compliance with Rules 5.23 to 5.27 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The primary duties of the audit committee are to
review the Company’s annual report and accounts, half-
yearly reports and quarterly reports and to provide advice

and comments thereon to the Board.

The members of the audit committee, all being
independent non-executive directors, during the financial
year and up to the date of this report are Mr. Yang Zhenhan
and Ms. Wu Suk Ching, Annie.

The audit committee has met twice during the year.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The proceeds from the issue of new shares for the listing

on the GEM of the Stock Exchange, after deduction of

related expenses, amounted

to approximately

HK$52,129,000 and have been applied as follows:

FrERIEN AR

RARETRBEBLEERNDEEE - NBERH
FISZ 1% » PRISSRIRF B4 /BB %52,129,0007T
REFEREEREFINOT

Amount utilized up

to 31 December 2002

BE-2ZC
Original plan* TZHA=t-H
Y hE LERANEHE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TEL TEL
Establishment and expansion of RIRARASE
the Group's Hong Kong ERREIMRER
and overseas offices 11,000 8,071
Marketing activities of the Group’s AEBERZTSHE -
products including organising BRAKHTE
workshops and participating in E2MESRES
trade exhibitions 15,000 1,686
Establishment and expansion of ORI RIE TR B RO
a research centre in Australia 7,000 160
Expansion of the research centre RRBEHED L
in Hong Kong 10,000 4,896
Investments REEE = 2,159
Additional working capital —-R2EES
of the Group 9,000 21,674
52,000 38,646
* Amounts extracted from the Company’s prospectus * ERBFUARR BT IFERM AR

dated 10 May 2000 issued in connection with the

listing of the Company’s shares on the GEM of the

Stock Exchange.

AR ETAEL - AMA-TTT
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USE OF PROCEEDS (Continued)

In view of the market recession, the Directors have
carefully evaluated the situation and reallocated the
funding as additional working capital for financing the
Group’s ongoing operations. In addition, the unused
proceeds were placed on the short-term deposits with

financial institutions in Hong Kong.

AUDITORS

The financial statements in respect of financial years ended
31 December 1999, 2000 and 2001 were audited by Arthur
Anderson & Co.

Following the combination of the practices of Arthur
Andersen & Co. and PricewaterhouseCoopers in China
and Hong Kong from 1 July 2002, Arthur Andersen & Co.
resigned as the Company’s auditors. Pursuant to a
resolution passed at a special general meeting of the
shareholders held on 13 November 2002, the Company
has appointed Horwath Hong Kong CPA Limited to fill
the vacancy. The accompanying financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2002 were audited by
Horwath Hong Kong CPA Limited. A resolution for the
re-appointment of Horwath Hong Kong Limited as auditors
for the ensuing year is to be proposed at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board of Directors,
TSANG CHI HIN

Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2003.
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/\W Horwath

Auditors’ Report to the Shareholders of
PROACTIVE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 48 to
86 which have been prepared in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDITORS

The company’s directors are responsible for the preparation
of financial statements which give a true and fair view. In
preparing financial statements which give a true and fair
view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies

are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion,
based on our audit, on those statements and to report our

opinion to you.
BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements
of Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test
basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment
of the significant estimates and judgements made by the
directors in the preparation of the financial statements,
and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the circumstances of the company and of the group,

consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

HORWATH HONG KONG CPA LIMITED
EEGSTMEH

2001 Central Plaza

18 Harbour Road

Wanchai Hong Kong
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Auditors’ Report

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all
the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence
to give reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. In forming
our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of
the presentation of information in the financial statements.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for

our opinion.
OPINION

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the

group as at 31 December 2002 and of the loss and cash

flows of the group for the year then ended, and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
HORWATH HONG KONG CPA LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Kam Wing, Clement
Practising Certificate number P02038

Hong Kong, 18 March 2003
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m Consolidated Income Statement

m a8 B & % —ERR-FEER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2002 #HZE-TT-_F+_-_A=+—HItFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (MAZ#5I7R)
2002 2001
ZETCZF —TT-F
Note $/000 $'000
Hi Tr Tr
Turnover =X 3&4 26,312 49,355
Cost of sales HERA (10,149) (19,473)
Gross profit E7 16,163 29,882
Distribution and selling expenses DERHEE R (58) (1,535)
General and administrative expenses —RETHBER (25,331) (51,283)
Loss from operations R IR (9,226) (22,936)
Interest income FIE WA 4 175 782
Interest expense MEHRX (126) (399)
Loss on disposal/provision 1 E & AR
for impairment in value of REBE/
investment in an associate REEE (187) (1,300)
Loss on investments REBEER (338) -
Share of loss of an associate Al A=INGl) 2 (213) (54)
Loss before taxation and BRI R ARE D EBRR
minority interests FEEESAER 5 (9,915) (23,907)
Taxation WA 7 (56) (122)
Loss before minority interests KPR R EEERAEE (9,971) (24,029)
Minority interests LYRREREGER 71 485
Loss attributable to shareholders BRRELEE 8 (9,900) (23,544)
(Accumulated loss) retained profit, (R BE) 2R A -
beginning of year F4) (23,429) 115
Accumulated loss, end of year 2RER &K (33,329) (23,429)
Loss per share — Basic BREBE-EAR 9 4.3 centsEfl  [10.1 centsE Al
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Balance Sheets

BT FEFR 2 E 8 8 %
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2002 R-_ZZ-—%#+-HA=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A ¥ %] 7R)
Consolidated Company
oy AT
2002 2001 2002 2001
—EE-F C-TT—F | ZEE-F C—IZTT-F
Note $/000 $'000 $/000 $'000
k=3 Tr T Tr T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Machinery and equipment EEEE 10 6,588 10,813 = -
Development expenditures REBA 11 551 809 - -
Investment in subsidiaries MEARRE 12 - - 22,373 20,373
Investment in an associate BENFRE 13 - 1,101 - -
Long-term investment RHKREREE 14 - 770 - -
Total non-current assets ERBEERRE 7,139 13,493 22,373 20,373
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories & 15 4,545 4,649 = -
Trade receivables JE Ui B 3K 16 2,874 4,014 = =
Prepayments, deposits and BAHE - Re R
other current assets HtneBE 17 2,615 1,882 - -
Pledged bank deposits EEMRITER 5,000 5,892 = -
Cash and other bank deposits B4 Rk E 81775 5 11,305 17,591 7,319 10,147
Total current assets MBEELE 26,339 34,028 7,319 10,147
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEBEE
Short-term bank borrowings EHRITER 18 (3,651) (1,177) = =
Trade payables FEfT R 19 (966) (3,420) = =
Accruals and other payables 712 & F [t H fth JE £ 3% (4,770) (8,618) (535) (637)
Receipts in advance WA (1,660) (1,325) = =
Finance lease obligations HEAREETEEE
~ current portion BT — REH 20 - (239) - -
Total current liabilities TBAELE (11,047) (14,779) (535) (637)
Net current assets RBEEFE 15,292 19,249 6,784 9,510
Total assets less current liabilities & 2 F R &) & (& 22,431 32,742 29,157 29,883




Balance Sheets

Annual Report 2002

5 E & & % —ET-FER
Consolidated Company
o AT
2002 2001 2002 2001
“EE-F -TT—F | ZEE-F C—IZTT-F
Note $/000 $/000 $/000 $/000
i3 Tr T Tr T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ~ JEREBEE
Finance lease obligations HEAREETEER
— non-current portion NHR—FARBHH 20 - (43) - =
22,431 32,699 29,157 29,883
Represented by: RE&
SHARE CAPITAL [N 21 23,200 23,200 23,200 23,200
RESERVES e (769) 9,086 5,957 6,683
Shareholders’ equity BRE R 22,431 32,286 29,157 29,883
MINORITY INTERESTS DERRES = 413 = =
22,431 32,699 29,157 29,883

These financial statements on pages 48 to 86 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 18 March 2003 and signed on its behalf by:

TSANG CHI HIN

B — &
SR

Chairman

EE

WEHNRFEI8EBEZHHBHMREK  AEESE
RZZZE=F=A+\BEBREREETIE
EREFZE

LAM KIM CHAU
R & K
Director

-
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—ERE-FER 7 A B € ® 22 %

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2002 #HEZE-_ZZE -+ _-_A=+—HItEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A ¥ %] 7R)

2002 2001
e —EE-F
Note $000 $000
M T T
NET CASH (OUTFLOW) INFLOW BEEL 2B E(Ri)

GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS AR 24.a (9,956) 4,054
Interest paid B H & (126) (399)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded REBBRIE 734 -
Overseas taxation paid BB INHIE (66) (271)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow BEFHEEZRSE (L)

from operating activities mAFE (9,414) 3,384
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REES

Purchase of machinery and NEEEEE

equipment (487) (361)

Proceeds from disposal of HEETEEEMBRE

machinery and equipment 223 79
Expenditures incurred on REBRMRX

development expenditures - (457)
Purchase of additional interests YN NG

in a subsidiary (454) -
Proceeds from disposal of investment i & B & A 8] 15 H B

in an associate - 25
Proceeds from disposal of investment — HERHEEEE

in long-term investment PG A 1 -
Repayment of advance from RAREBARAIERER

long-term investee company 526 -

Increase in long-term investment EMRHKREER - (770)

Translation adjustments I 5% AR 60 (122)

Interest received BFE 175 782
Net cash inflow (outflow) from BREFHEEZBRER

investing activities O F4 44 (824)
Net cash (outflow) inflow REMEEZRS

before financing () mA B8 (9,370) 2,560
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2 & B £ K B % —ETE—EER

2002 2001
—BE-F “TE—F
Note $/000 $'000
i T T
FINANCING MEEH 24.b
Repayment of bank loans BRERITER - (1,479)
Repayment of capital element EBRREHEEATEE
of finance lease obligations R RAE 2D (282) (209)
Capital injected by a minority /& 2 R D Bk R
shareholder of a subsidiary BAKRA - 872
Net cash outflow from financing RERPELEZRE R FE (282) (816)
(Decrease) increase in cash and RekERFELBEEZ
cash equivalents (R4) #n (9,652) 1,744
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RERERATER -
beginning of year F4) 22,306 20,562
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RERERATER -
end of year FE 24.c 12,654 22,306
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“TET_FEHR kR # & 2 8 %

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2002 #HEZE-_ZE -+ -_FA=+—HItFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (MAZ#5I7R)

Cumulative
Share Share Capital Contributed translation Accumulated
capital  premium reserve surplus  adjustment deficits Total
28

BA  RHEE EXRE HARE EXRE ZEEE @it
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FEL FEL FEL FEL FEL FEL FEL
(Note 23)  (Note 23)
(Bsk23)  (MHE23)

Consolidated oy
As at 1 January 2001 RZZE-%-f-H 23,200 29,135 3,530 - 2 15 55,978
Loss attributable to RREGER

shareholders - - - - - (23,544) (23,544)
Translation adjustments  [E 5% 3% - - - - (148) - (148)
As at 1 January 2002 R-EE-£—-F—H 23,200 29,135 3,530 = (1500 (23,429) 32,286
Loss attributable to RREGER

shareholders - - - - - (9,900) (9,900)
Translation adjustments  [E 5 {% - - - - 45 - 45
As at 31 December 2002 R-ZE -4

+-A=1+-H 23,200 29,135 3,530 - (105 (33,329) 22,431

Company N
As at 1 January 2001 RZZE-%-f-H 23,200 29,135 - 8,586 - (4,942 55,979
Loss attributable to RREGER

shareholders - - - - - (26,096) (26,096)
As at 1 January 2002 R-ZEE-£-F—H 23,200 29,135 = 8,586 - (31,039 29,883
Loss attributable to RREGER

shareholders - - - - - (726) (726)
As at 31 December 2002 R-ZTE -4

+-A=1+-H 23,200 29,135 - 8,586 - (31,764) 29,157
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(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

ORGANISATION AND OPERATIONS

Proactive Technology Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in Bermuda on 25
February 2000 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended). Its shares have been listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 18
May 2000.

The Company is an investment holding company.
Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
investment holding, design, development and sale
of value-added telecommunications products and
computer telephony products. Inherent in the
Group’s business are various risks and uncertainties,
including changes in technology, the ability to raise
additional capital and financing when necessary,
and the fact that the Group has reported losses for

the past three years.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Statements of Standard Accounting
Practice issued by the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong, and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM
Listing Rules”). Principal accounting policies are
summarised below:

a. Adoption of new/revised Statements of
Standard Accounting Practice

Effective 1 January 2002, the following
Statements of Standard Accounting Practice
(“SSAPs”) issued by the Hong Kong Society

of Accountants have been adopted:

SSAP 1 (Revised):
Presentation of financial statements
SSAP 11 (Revised):
Foreign currency translation
SSAP 15 (Revised):
Cash flow statements
SSAP 34:
Employee benefits

(BREREER  ESEHNETREM)

ARIBEAREHREE
BAMRERERAR ([RAAEDRK=
ZETEZFE AT HBERBARE N
N—FRAE BIEF]) £ B FZ M
YRERREBERAR - ARARMOERN
“EETFRAATNBRREEBAR
ZAERATE ([BRRAT]) 8I 2R (T8I
R]) £ e

ARREBXBREEER - AEEE
BXBIRT  HEREERESHE
mMERERER -  AKREXBEFEE
EREFETHBEER  EREERRE
ft - EEVERERESMEST UK
AEBEEBT=-"AFE£FERNE

= o

FESFEE
AERBEREBEESAE QM
BRTEBER BEAREFRA &
BRERPI BB EEREREEK S
RZMERRBEERE S LM R
(T8I 2R £ R A1) 893 FEIR T AT 4w
Bl REBERAMEE S EREMA N
T

a. R MBI AN ST ERER
BT -_F—A—HRB ARQ

ARAEEFRATUATHEES
SRR AMNEAEBER

SR EHEREIRE BFTA) :

2B BRR
BETEBEINE R (EFTA) :
SN IR E
BERTEBEINEI55 (EFTA) :
REMEBRR
BRI BB ERFE 3458 ¢
BT
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—ET_FEH BB w5 KW &
2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FTEESREGE)

a. Adoption of new/revised Statements of a. R B ANEHERE
Standard Accounting Practice (continued) al (&)
In accordance with SSAP 1 (Revised), the WBESFTESERNE 15 (B 5]
statement of changes in equity has been ) 2EBERREREFK - I
presented in place of the statement of REECBABEEX °
recognised gains and losses.
SSAP 11 (Revised) prescribes the basis for B EBEAFE15 (BT A) &
the translation of foreign currency MTHERR MM HREKRZ
transactions and financial statements. This HNEEIRE BLAE o BHIKERT Z B ET
revised SSAP has had no material impact BEREUHAFEREFERR
on the results of the current and prior years. BEARTE -
In accordance with SSAP 15 (Revised), cash BIESTEEERIFE 155 (BF]
flows are classified by operating, investing ) BenS8RRBELEED -
and financing activities. The presentation REEHLRBMETHME S - K
of the cash flow statement has been changed BREME2EZ2ReREBEHRREE
to conform to the requirements of this B AFEUEETZ R E
revised SSAP. AR -
SSAP 34 prescribes the accounting and BRI EBEREI4RFLT AR
disclosure for employee benefits. This new B TEAN 2 &t RIRE AR - it
SSAP has had no material impact on the MBS BEBENERFERESF
results of the current and prior years. KBERBEATE -

b. Basis of measurement b. B 78 4R L EL2E
The financial statements have been prepared RERIERAE LK AERRBE
on the historical cost basis. iz

c. Basis of consolidation c. mEEE
The consolidated financial statements FERBEBREARTREWER
include the accounts of the Company and AIMERIE (B[ AREE] ) - F
its subsidiaries (together “the Group”). The ERKBEXEENHRBEAR A
results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed (EBWENHEE AR AL
of during the year are recorded from or to AEBRRAN - MEEARAMR
their effective dates of acquisition or S REFENRRERAREH -
disposal. Significant intra-group transactions
and balances have been eliminated on
consolidation.

d. Subsidiaries d. B 8 2 &)

A subsidiary is a company in which the
Company controls, which is normally
evidenced when the Group has the power
to govern the financial and operating
policies of that company so as to benefit
from its activities. In the Company’s
financial statements, investment in
subsidiaries is stated at cost less provision
for any impairment in value, while income
from subsidiaries is recorded to the extent
of dividends received and receivable.

LN PNCIDERA/NCTIEIEPR 22 N
Al —RIEBENT @ EHEEES
—HBZUBEREEBRARE
MEFESZHESN - RAREZE
BHREA KRB RARNKET)
12 B A B RAE (] K AR B2 A
B MKEME AR WARR
BB M B M B BRR R o
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FTEESREGE)

e. Goodwill e. 5k
Goodwill represents the difference between B R YR 2 BN B R £ [ PR
the fair value of the consideration given and BzaohEEFEATERZ
the Group’s share of the aggregate fair W o UERKBZA D HEE
values of the identifiable net assets of RERQFEEBBRKERRIE
subsidiaries acquired. Goodwill is EMAEEBER AR ARE
capitalised in the balance sheet and is REEZLHBEENEEARRE
amortised to the income statement on a RERE - WAREE G AIEA
straight-line basis over its estimated useful KBER - LWEREMBEARE
economic life. This represents a change Bk AEBERBEIATERE
from prior years where goodwill was BIZE 305k At AFHRIE &R - 7
eliminated immediately against reserves. B . = el v S R g
The Group has adopted the transitional MELZABHERSEESE
provision allowed in SSAP 30, and goodwill B RAIREEMIIEE -
arising from acquisitions before 1 January
2001 will continue to be held in reserves
and no reinstatement has been made.

f. Associates f. BENE
An associate is a company, not being a Bt N AT B AR - K
subsidiary, in which the Group holds 20% SENARBIRER X FHH20%

or more of its issued voting share capital as
a long-term investment and can exercise
significant influence over its management.
In the consolidated financial statements,
investment in associate is stated at the
Group’s share of the fair value of the
separate net assets of the associates at the
time of acquisition, adjusted for the Group’s
share of undistributed post-acquisition
profits/losses and reserves of the associates,
distributions received from the associates
and other necessary alterations in the
Group’s proportionate interest in the
associates arising from changes in the equity
of the associates that have not been
included in the income statement. In the
Company’s financial statements, investment
in associates is stated at cost less provision
for an impairment in value, while income
from associates is recorded to the extent of

dividends received and receivable.

FAEEBEITAREERA - I
AHEERTEERFEIZA
Al o REBEMERA M BEHRRE
REBRBERR ZRETIEA
S B A UL BB B I BT AL A% R A
AoREEREZAFEE I
EAREE PG E AR R
DEEZEFBEEER - EW
Bt 8 B YRR RO 0 B B B A R A
BENEWREREEmELERE
1B R P R A B R R L
M EREARR - EARAR
BHRERA  RBLRBRNKET)
12 B AERAE (] K ZOR B2 A
B MKBBE AR ZWARR
B U E M e M B BRR R o
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

8.

Turnover and revenue recognition

Turnover represents (i) the net invoiced
value for the supply, development
and integration of telecommunications,
computer telephony systems, and other
computer products, after allowances for
returns and discounts; (ii) rental income
from leasing of telecommunications and
computer telephony equipments; and (iii)
fees for consulting and maintenance
services.

Revenue is recognised when the outcome
of a transaction can be measured reliably
and when it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the transaction will
flow to the Group. Revenue from the supply,
development and integration of
telecommunication, computer telephony
systems and other computer products
recognised when the merchandise is
delivered and the related development and
integration services are completed. Rental
income from leasing of telecommunication
and computer telephony equipment is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
respective period of the leases. Consulting
and maintenance service fees are recognised
when the services are rendered. Interest
income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis on the principal outstanding and at
the rate applicable.

Advance payments received from customers
prior to delivery of merchandise and
completion of the related development and
integration services or rendering of other
services are recorded as receipts in advance.

Taxation

Individual companies within the Group
provide for profits tax on the basis of their
profits for financial reporting purposes,
adjusted for income and expense items
which are not assessable or deductible for
profits tax purposes.

Deferred taxation is provided under the
liability method, at the current tax rate, in
respect of significant timing differences
between profit as computed for taxation
purposes and profit as stated in the financial
statements, except when it is considered that
no liability will arise in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets are not recognised
unless the related benefits are expected to
crystallise in the foreseeable future.

2.

ETREHEEXE)

g.

EEBRBGSER
BEBRROMEE  FZEREK
BAES  BEEFREME K
Euu&ﬁ‘“?ﬂﬁ?L &ﬁ?ﬂﬁﬁfﬁ
ZEEFE: (VEEEAREK
£ nxﬁZ?‘Fﬂ%W/\ R (Ciii)
REFBRREBSIRS 2R K
A e

W TN R 5 2 RS AT SE 5t
Hin BRItk 22 58 B 2 4B A 2
SRR AEETARER - #
fE - FABEREKEM  ERES
AR EMERER KRN ZE
?ﬁﬁ]ﬂ?&ﬁ&ﬁfﬁ?ﬁ?‘&ﬁﬁzﬁﬁ
f%r:ﬁﬁiﬁﬁ?*l%ﬁﬁm HEEBKE
EREAREF Tﬁ‘fllﬁl/\ﬁ(\x
E"Fﬂfﬁﬂfﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁ@iitﬁﬁﬁ

o 7B F R HEAS RIS B W AR AR
i‘%mﬁi{é?uﬁﬁw MEWAT
To R AR AEE AR & Ko 3@ B F R 4%
B i b ) B 2= 3R o

EEmR T RBE MR REKR
7% 5 BX Al =k L 4th AR 75 52 5% AT B BE
X B W B 2 FE R A BR & TR G
I o

B8

AN B A E B R F 2 A AT B
1 L/(Xgﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ#ﬁz/ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ
£ WHFEHmE ?ﬁiﬁ%ffdz
WA A AT R 2 B TR B A
ERHE -

REFRIETIRE BB JAFER
Mot i A1) B2 B 765 2R P a6 s A1 R B 2
BEARERE  ERBTERH
BABKRERZ ABRITEEE
A o BRIFL BN TAF KA IE
BREBAERR - BRNELEN A
BETHER -



Notes to the Financial Statements

U

CL

Annual Report 2002
—EE_FER

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or
production of an asset that takes a
substantial period of time to bring to its
intended use or sale are capitalised as part
of the cost of that asset based on the cost
of the specific borrowings. All other
borrowing costs are recognised as an

expense as incurred.

Employee retirement benefits

Costs of employee retirement benefits are
recognised as an expense in the period in

which they are incurred.

Machinery and equipment and depreciation

Machinery and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Major expenditures on modifications and
betterments of machinery and equipment
which will result in future economic benefits
are capitalised, while expenditures on
maintenance and repairs are expensed when
incurred. Depreciation is provided on a
straight-line basis to write off the cost less
estimated residual value of each asset after
considering its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The annual rates of

depreciation are as follows:

Furniture, fixtures and

office equipment 20%
Computer equipment 30%
Motor vehicles 30%
Equipment on lease to customers 30%
Equipment for development 30%

Gains and losses on disposal of machinery
and equipment are recognised in the income
statement based on the net disposal
proceeds less the carrying amount of the

assets.

Machinery and equipment held under
finance leases are recorded and depreciated

on the same basis as described above.

2. FESFEEE)

fEE B A

HU S - ERJEEEM IS
E-BREARHREES A BER
BT RENHEECEEME
BELZEERA - BE(IEZE
BEKAZ —# - A EME
BRATER D ZERKAZEED
Mz—HER -
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FESFEEE)
I Research and development expenditures I. HRRFEZER

Research expenditures are written off as
incurred. Development expenditures are
charged against income in the period
incurred except for those incurred for
specific projects which are deferred where
recoverability can be foreseen with
reasonable assurance and comply with the
following criteria: (i) the costs attributable
to the product or process can be separately
identified and measured reliably; (ii) the
technical feasibility of the product or
process can be demonstrated; (iii) it is
intended to produce and market, or use,
the product or process; (iv) the ability to
produce or use the product or process can
be demonstrated; (v) the existence of a
market for the product or process or, if it is
to be used internally rather than sold, its
usefulness can be demonstrated; and (v)
adequate resources exists, or their
availability can be demonstrated, to
complete the project and market or use the
product or process. Capitalised development
expenditures are amortised on a straight-
line basis over the period in which the
related product or process is expected to
be sold or utilised, starting from the time
when the product or process is available
for use.

Long-term investment

Long-term investment is stated at cost less
provision for any impairment in value.
Income from long-term investment is
accounted for to the extent of dividends
received or receivable.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is calculated
using the first-in, first-out method of costing
and includes costs of purchase and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Net
realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices in the ordinary course of
business, less further costs expected to be
incurred to completion and disposal.
Provision is made for obsolete, slow-moving
or defective items where appropriate.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

n.

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised
as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period
the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories, arising from an increase in net
realisable value, is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as
an expense in the period in which the

reversal occurs.

Impairment of assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment

whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of one of these assets may not be
recoverable. Whenever the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount,
an impairment loss representing the
difference between the carrying amount and
the recoverable amount, is recognised in
the income statement. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s net selling
price and value in use. The net selling price
is the amount obtainable from the sale of
an asset in an arm’s length transaction less
the costs of the disposal, while value in use
is the present value of estimated future cash
flows expected to arise from the continuing
use of an asset and from its disposal at the

end of its useful life.

Reversal of an impairment loss of an asset
recognised in prior years is recorded when
there is an indication that the impairment
loss recognised for the asset no longer exist
or has decreased. The reversal is recorded

in the income statement.

2.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FTEESREGE)
p- Provisions and contingencies p. BERRIABIE
A provision is recognised when there is a ERBEEHELERBEE (T
present obligation, legal or constructive, as MR AN EEMNEE)  mE
a result of a past event and it is probable BZEEAAE ( MR AR ) &
(i.e. more likely than not) that an outflow ﬁ ERBNmOERRLD -
of resources embodying economic benefits BERISEfL A2 EIRAV S FE - A
will be required to settle the obligations, Ak%/&ﬁ BEcESEHE
and a reliable estimate can be made of the B RAAE - ARBRIRE &) & EE
amount of the obligation. Provisions are e MeBEREENTERE
reviewed regularly and adjusted to reflect AN BEONSHEK/EEREERS
the current best estimate. Where the effect FrER MR E -
of the time value of money is material, the
amount of a provision is the present value
of the expenditure expected to be required
to settle the obligation.
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in ZRBBETEEYBHHRRAME
the financial statements. They are disclosed R BRIEHBEERBENENE
unless the possibility of an outflow of RREE AT R E - KRB E
resources embodying economic benefits is —RETURE - IREETS
remote. A contingent asset is not recognised R FS MR R - HENA A aEE
in the financial statements but disclosed (SF <3l me'JAﬁE% ®
when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.
q. Subsequent events q. HEIRESE

Post-year-end events that provide additional
information about a company’s position at
the balance sheet date or those that indicate
the going concern assumption is not
appropriate (adjusting events), are reflected
in the financial statements. Post-year-end
events that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes when material.

Leases

Finance leases represent those leases under
which substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the leased assets are
transferred to the Group. Machinery and
equipment held under finance leases are
initially recorded at the present value of
the minimum payments at the inception of
the leases, with equivalent liabilities
categorised as appropriate under current or
non-current liabilities. Interest expense,
which represents the difference between the
minimum payments at the inception of the
finance leases and the corresponding fair
value of the assets acquired, is allocated to
accounting periods over the period of the
relevant leases to produce a constant rate
of charge on the outstanding balances.

FHEABRBAMS REEBNK
ﬂﬁ;ﬁ%’?{f FINE B kB RN
EENEG g
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

r.

Leases (continued)

Operating leases represent those leases
under which substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the leased assets
remain with the lessors. Rental payments
under operating leases are charged to the
income statement on a straight-line basis

over the period of the relevant leases.

Foreign currency translation

Individual companies within the Group
maintain their books and records in the
primary currencies of their respective
operations (“functional currencies”). In the
accounts of the individual companies,
transactions in other currencies during the
year are translated into the respective
functional currencies at the applicable rates
of exchange prevailing at the time of the
transactions; monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in other currencies are
translated into the respective functional
currencies at the applicable rates of
exchange in effect at the balance sheet date.
Exchange gains and losses are dealt with in
the income statements of the individual

companies.

The Group prepares consolidated financial
statements in Hong Kong dollars. For the
purpose of consolidation, income and
expense items of subsidiaries with functional
currencies other than Hong Kong dollars are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
average applicable exchange rates during
the year; assets and liabilities of subsidiaries
with functional currencies other than Hong
Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the applicable rates of exchange
in effect at the balance sheet date. Exchange
differences arising from such translations are
dealt with as movements of cumulative

translation adjustment.

2. FESFEEE)
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FEESTHE (&)
t. Use of estimates t. {5t

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong requires
management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly,
actual results could differ from those

estimates.

Employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long-service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance

sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity or paternity leave are not

recognised until the time of leave.
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3. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS Sh

Parties are considered to be related if one party
has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the
other party or exercise significant influence over
the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related

if they are subject to common control or common
significant influence.

The Group had the following significant

transactions with a related party:

BRAEAELRS

BN EESIMEEENS T
RAEETHERGERRFRE ST
TREEBRATZENR  AIWBERBEEA
+ - MEMFE DB Z IR E — =%
A—FXTE TR ERSBEREEA
4 -

AEBHEEHEEATHZEARSHE
BT

2002 2001

- —EE-F

Name of related BBEALT $'000 $'000

party/nature of transaction 2B/ RHLE T T

Optech Technology Limited* EEBABRAA

— Sales made by the Group - AEEHE 142 -
Proactive Cyberspace Company Limited* REIEHHBERAA*

— Sales made by the Group - AEEHE - 161

o Optech Technology Limited was previously a * AEBEHEAEEEAARAA

10% owned investment of the Group. The
Group disposed of this investment in June
2002.

* Proactive Cyberspace Company Limited was
previously a 33-1/3% owned associate of the
Group. The Group disposed of this associate

10%2 5 - REEER =TT =
FRNALHEREE -

*

AEBEHEEREAEHHRTEERA
A133-1/3% 2 R#E - REBEBER=
T _F+-A=+—BHE LB

on 31 December 2002. /NI
4. TURNOVER AND REVENUE 4. EXERWE
Turnover and revenue consisted of: BEER KB :

2002 2001
—BE-F “TE—F
$'000 $'000
Tr T
Telecommunications B 13,291 31,633
Computer telephony BEHER 9,896 17,722
Others Hib 3,125 =
Total turnover BEER 26,312 49,355
Interest income from bank deposits BRITEARME WA 175 782
Total revenue B 26,487 50,137
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LOSS BEFORE TAXATION AND MINORITY 5. BR B AT K2 R 5T 2 8RR FE {5 #E 5 AT
INTERESTS B8
Loss before taxation and minority interests was B Tt AT Ko R 5 A BOIR SRR 15 42 25 A B 1R
determined after charging and crediting the To40ks st AR 5IIR B &5 ¢
following items:
2002 2001
e —EE-F
$'000 $'000
T T
After charging : 2
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) STRA(BEESEMHL) 12,319 25,310
Retirement benefits scheme costs SRR A5 81 AR 494 750
Less: Amount included in research and A BRERER
development expenditures HEBRZEHE (2,097) (3,904)
10,716 22,156
Research and development expenditures HERFAEER 2,355 4,243
Less: Amount capitalised (note 11) A BRBERE A1) - (457)
2,355 3,786
Write-off of development expenditures B % B A 34 258 1,024
Cost of inventories HERA 8,533 18,203
Operating lease rentals of premises HEHEZEFER 3,187 4,620
Interest expense MEHX
— bank borrowings wholly repayable - IFRNERZBIER
within five years 111 347
— finance lease -REHEERAEZEE 15 52
Provision for and write-off of bad and REGREE
doubtful receivables 744 1,292
Provision for and write-off of obsolete and BRERRHFERE
slow-moving inventories 723 2,370
Depreciation of machinery and equipment EEEENE
- owned assets -BBRBAE 4,990 4,439
— assets held under a finance lease —REHEERAEZEE 125 250
Net loss on disposal of machinery HEEATEEZBREER
and equipment 148 638
Net loss on disposal of investment HEMERAREEEFE
in an associate 187 -
Net exchange loss EiEBEFE 55 114
Auditors” remuneration BRI & 220 560
After crediting : EHPNE
Rental income from leasing of telecommunications £ Sl R K B FEE R 2
and computer telephony equipment e W e 5,128 5,698
Interest income from bank deposits BRITFERZFERA 175 782
Net gain on disposal of investment in an associate it & & & 22 5% & & i # = 24
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6. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 6. EENEEEEAENS

EMOLUMENTS

a. Details of emoluments paid/payable to a. St EEATFARARESZM

directors of the Company are: SEIBOT :

2002 2001

ZECF —TT-F

$'000 $'000

T T

Fees for executive directors BITESEHS - -

Fees for non-executive directors ERTESHSE 60 210

Other emoluments for WITES
executive directors H B

— Salaries, housing benefits —ErEe  BEEREK

and allowances H 2 B 3,317 4,360

- Pension scheme contributions —RIKE BN 59 60

3,436 4,630

During the year, five executive directors
waived emoluments of approximately
$2,123,000 (2001: Nil). No incentive
payment for joining the Group or
compensation for loss of office was paid or
payable to any director for the year.

The number of directors whose emolument
falls within the following bands is as

AREBEFFALEEA » SALTTE B RE
&6 ££2,123,000T (ZFZE—F « ) -
FA - AEEWEE N KBNS TFEME
EERMBEANEE 2 ZE) ¢ ok B B8

8 o

HMEeNFUATHERNZESE AKX
™~ :

follows:
2002 2001
ZETCF —TT-F
Executive directors HITES

- Nil to $1,000,000 — %% 1,000,00075 4 4
- $1,000,001 to $1,500,000 —1,000,0017T £ 1,500,0007T 1 1

Non-executive directors EHTES
- Nil to $1,000,000 — %% 1,000,00075 4 4
9 9

During the year ended 31 December 2002,
the five executive directors received
individual emoluments of approximately
$1,050,000 (2001: $1,268,000), $706,000
(2001: $752,000), $593,000 (2001:
$814,000), $565,000 (2001: $816,000) and
$462,000 (2001: $770,000). The four non-
executive directors received individual fees
of approximately $20,000 (2001: $70,000),
$20,000 (2001: $70,000), $20,0000 (2001 :
$70,000), and Nil (2001 — Nil).

REBE-ZTT _F+=-A=+—HItF
EHM - AITE S 5 B W EE € 49
1,050,0007T (= ZZ — 4 : 1,268,000
JT) * 706,0007C (ZZZ—4F : 752,000
JC) ' 593,0007T (ZZZ —4F : 814,000
JC) ' 565,000 (=ZFZ —4 : 816,0007T)
% 462,000 (ZZEZE —F : 770,000
JC) ° PRI IEBTT EE 5 BIUER B & 49
20,0007C (ZZFZ —4 : 70,0007T) -
20,0007t (ZZFZ —4 : 70,0007T) -
20,0007t (ZZFZ —%F : 70,0007T) & &
(ZZET—F: &) o
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6. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 6. EEREEBEEAEME (&)

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

b. Details of emoluments paid/payable to the b. rEEAfuUKSHEL (BEE
five highest paid individuals (including ERHMER)SEEHe
directors and other employees) are: HEBET

2002 2001
3 et T
$'000 $'000
Tr Fr
Salaries, housing benefits EA5¢  BE=RM
and allowances Ko EH A 285 3,710 4,370
Pension scheme contributions RINSFEIER 59 60
3,769 4,430
Four (2001: Three) of the highest paid M (CEE—F: =) RHETIR
individuals were executive directors of the WITEE  HEZHEeSFHNHT6.a °

Company, whose emoluments have been

included in Note 6.a above.

During the year, no emoluments were paid RAFEA - EERAAMREHAL(E
to the five highest paid individuals BEERHEMESR) B AR5 En
(including directors and other employees) AREEFIRMBAREEFELSERHS
as inducement to join or upon joining the B E -

Group or as compensation for loss of office.

The number of the five highest paid hAfukm#r AL (BEEEREMES)
individuals (including directors and other WIS N FATHEERNZ AZBNT :

employees) falls within the following bands:

2002 2001
—EE-F —TE-F

~ Nil to $1,000,000 — #%1,000,0007C 4 4
- $1,000,001 to $1,500,000 — 1,000,0017c£1,500,0007T 1 1
5 5
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TAXATION 7. B8
Taxation consisted of: RIEELE :
2002 2001
- —EE-F
$'000 $000
T T
Current taxation BHHR
- Hong Kong profits tax - BRNEHR = -
- Overseas income tax —BIMEIE 50 108
Share of associate’s taxation PEBMENAHE 6 14
56 122
Deferred taxation EREHA = -
56 122
The Company is not subject to tax in Bermuda on ARR B Z 5 A K B AN 5w AT A R AR
its profit or capital gains until March 2016. No BRENBEBEE_ZT—RF=ZARI -
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the EAAREERGHE BB BELIIST
Group had no assessable profit arising in or ZEEHERBUERN - IAREREET
derived from Hong Kong. Overseas income tax SRETESE - BINVBEHMBELF -
has been provided by subsidiaries, branches or 5 A8 8 SN SR B AR R 5T AR TR
representative offices based on their estimated BT EEARECEERERE RN 2 #
taxable profits at the rates of taxation applicable AT AT ©
in the respective jurisdictions in which they
operate.
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS 8. IR BGRB8
During the year ended 31 December 2002, the BE—_TZ_F+-_A=+—RHIEF
consolidated loss attributable to shareholders B GERREOEEESEEBALRA
included a loss of approximately $726,000 (2001: A B 7% ¥ 3R B T2 2 5 18 49726,0000T (—
$26,096,000) dealt with in the financial statements TE—F :26,096,0007T) °
of the Company.
LOSS PER SHARE 9. BRER

The calculation of basic loss per share is based
on the consolidated loss attributable to
shareholders of approximately $9,900,000 (2001:
$23,544,000) and on the weighted average number
of 232,000,000 shares (2001: 232,000,000 shares)

in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share is not presented because

the effect is anti-dilutive.

TR EARE B T bALR S R R B 1 B 1R 5t
& . 459,900,000 (=TT — F :
23,544,0007T) + KRR FAE BT EBER
o 2 INFE 98 B %232,000,0008% (=
TEZ—4F : 232,000,0008%) 5T HE -

HRAFEANEBERBEEEESY
2 FAbBME27SRETER -
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10.  MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 10. EBEEEE
Movements of machinery and equipment BEEEE &) WEHOAT :

(consolidated) were:

2002 2001
& Jut3 ZET-F
Furniture,
fixtures and Equipment  Equipment
office  Computer Motor on lease to for
equipment  equipment vehicles  customers ~ development Total Total
BRR b
BAZRE  ERRE B %ZFeRB  HERG &t &
$'000 $/000 $/000 $'000 $/000 $/000 $'000
T T T T T T T
Cost BA

Beginning of year £4) 4,901 5,402 1,272 4,714 3,060 19,349 17,839
Additions hE 1 486 - - - 487 361
Disposals HE/Hi (73 (18) (1,272) () - (1,366) (954)
Transferred from inventories & 57 - 103 - 1,839 1,271 3,213 4,687
Transferred to inventories ~ HEZFE - (388) - (1,776) (1,395) (3,559 (2,583)
Translation differences EXZE 2 - - - - 2 (1)
End of year ER 4,831 5,585 - 4,774 2,936 18,126 19,349

Accumulated depreciation ~ ZH {7 E
Beginning of year 2 1,719 3,331 834 1,583 1,069 8,536 4,603
Provision for the year EERRE 1,587 1,116 125 1,348 939 5,115 4,689
Disposals HE/Hi VE) (12) (959) (1) - (993) (237)
Transferred to inventories ~ BEZFE - (178) - (411) (529) (1,119 (518)
Translation differences EXZE - - - - - - (1)
End of year ER 3,283 4,257 - 2,519 1,479 11,538 8,536

Net book value REEE
End of year EE 1,548 1,328 - 2,255 1457 6,588 10,813
Beginning of year £4) 3,182 2,071 438 3,131 1,991 10,813 13,236

11. DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURES 1. MHBEEBEA
Movements of development expenditures REER ) 2T :
(consolidated) were:

2002 2001
—EECF —25-F
$'000 $000
T T
Beginning of year F4) 809 1,376
Additions m - 457
Written-off A (258) (1,024)
End of year FE 551 809
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12.

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

In the Company’s balance sheet,

investment in

12. KWEBRAKRE
EARREERBRA  MBARIKRE

subsidiaries consisted of: B

2002 2001
ZETCZF —TT-F
$'000 $'000
Tr Fr
Unlisted shares, at cost ELEMBR - ZRAE 8,791 8,791
Due from subsidiaries =GR 47,048 45,048
55,839 53,839
Less: Provision for impairment in value B OREEE (33,466) (33,466)
22,373 20,373

The amount due from subsidiaries are unsecured, & U B B A 7] 3k 18 3 £ 3K K R 5 F

N

non-interest bearing and not repayable until the

subsidiaries are financially capable to do so.

£ ADAFE %T@FWE RITER B
ERZAERWE R AR

TA °
The underlying value of the investment in ARABEBEEFERRBRERNWEBRAZE
subsidiaries is, in the opinion of the Company’s REEBETNIPRE_ZSZE_F+=RA=
Directors, not less than its carrying value as at 31 +T—HAZEREE -
December 2002.
Details of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2002 RE_ZSZE_F+-RA=+—HHWE
are: ANEEHAT :
Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ Issued and fully interest attributable
Name operations paid share capital to the Group Principal activities
iR/ BEAR REEERS
£#1 EXhE AR ZRA Rt Al TEXE
CentreWorld Holding Ltd The British Virgin Islands US$1,029 100% Investment holding
RERLES 1,029% 7 RERR
Interworth, Inc The British Virgin Islands Us$100 100% Investment holding
RERLES 100X7 RERR
Proactive e-Commerce Australia A$10 100% Provision of
(Australia) Pty. Limited B 10R7T telecommunications and
computer telephony
solutions
RESARER
BERARE
Proactive Technology Singapore $G$100,000 100% Provision of
(Asia) Pte Ltd K 100,000% 70 telecommunications and
computer telephony
solutions
RESARER
BERARE
Proactive Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100% Provision of
EARBEERA 5k 1,000,000% 70 telecommunications and
computer telephony
solutions
RESARER
BERARE
Proactive Technology Taiwan NT$10,000,000 100% Provision of
(Taiwan) Limited =) # 4 %10,000,000 telecommunication

EEHRENERRA

products and provision

of tele-commerce services
RESAREA

BERARR



Annual Report 2002

Notes to the Financial Statements n

—ET_FEH BB w5 KW &

12.  INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 12. MBARRE(E)
The shares of CentreWorld Holding Ltd are held % CentreWorld Holding Ltd# BT & & ()
directly by the Company. The shares of other REARFPEEFEIN EMHEBERARZ
subsidiaries are held indirectly. BB R/ARBEEZERE -
None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in RBE_ZTZE_F+-_A=+—HIL*HF
issue at any time during the year ended 31 EA - AEMBRARYEBTEMNEER
December 2002. B o
On 16 December 2002, the Group acquired 40 RZZBEZ-F+ A+ AEBEIKA
per cent holding of the issued ordinary share capital 454,000 THEEEWEATE HA A B %
of Proactive Technology (Taiwan) Limited, a 60 TEBBRAZ60%HMEBERFKMNDER
per cent held subsidiary of the Group before the ANABEBITEBRANZ40% - MBEBZ
acquisition, at $454,000. In this connection, the s B P A5 2R 2 22 #995,000 T ¢ B BDEF
goodwill acquired of $95,000 was written off in WEE - R—_FEZFE_F+_HA=+—8 -
the financial statement upon the acquisition. As at EENEROABRAANDAEERZE2E
31 December 2002, Proactive Technology (Taiwan) BEEHBLA -
Limited, was a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group.

13. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 13.

Investment in an associate (consolidated) consisted
of:

BEQRRE

BEATRA(BA) B

2002 2001

3 e 32

$'000 $'000

Tr T

Unlisted shares, at cost ELEMRD - BRAE - 3,300
Accumulated share of losses B ABBEARER - (94)
- 3,206

Less: Provision for impairment in value A OB EER - (1,300)
- 1,906

Amount due to an associate g A=INGE e - (805)
- 1,101

On 31 December 2002, the entire 33-1/3% equity
interest in Proactive Cyberspace Company Limited
was disposed of to an independent third party at
$1,500,000 and a loss of $187,000 was resulted.

RZZBEZE-—F+_HA=+—H A£H
1A1,500,000 7t i & E G & A B EEHS
BRARZ33-1/3%RET —BLHE=
& o MR H & 2 &1 4187,000 7T °
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13.

14.

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 13.

Details of the associate were:

BMENRRE (B)

HAZBMEARERNAT

Percentage of

Place and equity interest
date of Issued and attributable to

incorporation/ fully paid the Group Principal

Name operations share capital (held indirectly) activities
REEES

£#8 EMRL/ EEb Y ERTRARZRA REWH  EEEH
2002 2001

Proactive Cyberspace Hong Kong HK$6,900,000 - 33-"%  Provision of
Company Limited &k 6,900,0007% 7T telecommunications and

BEEHHBARAA

There was no other associate held by the Group as
at 31 December 2002.

LONG-TERM INVESTMENT 14.

Long-term investment (consolidated) consisted of:

computer telephony solutions

RESARERIERRNE

R_ZEZ_F+_HA=+—H8 a5HEH
WS BEABEQT -

RHAREEE
EHIRER B () 815 ¢

2002 2001

ZETCF —TT-F

$'000 $'000

T T

Unlisted shares, at cost EEMRG - BRAE - 1
Advances BREBEEARER - 769
- 770

In May 2001, the Group acquired a 10% equity
interest in Optech Telecom Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong, which is principally
engaged in the development and trading of

telecommunications products.

The Company sold the investment in June 2002 at

cost.

The Group has waived its entitlement to all
outstanding advances to Optech Telecom Limited
amounting $243,000 (2001: nil).

RZZEZT—FHA  FAEEBAEESE
ABRAA 0% © T —FEEK
YZRAR - HEXTBEXBREEEAE

]
mA °

R-EZ-FRA - AEBRKAER
HIREEBRBHET —BILE=F -

AEBREEEENHRARAKERZ
fEE & $£243,000c (=TT —F : &) -
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15. INVENTORIES 15.

Inventories (consolidated) consisted of:

2002 2001
—BTCF —TT-F
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Telecommunication and computer BEAREMEEE K

telephony hardware products B M 6,860 7,005

Less: Provision for obsolete and W RERBHEFERE
slow-moving inventories (2,315) (2,356)
4,545 4,649

As at 31 December 2002, inventories of
approximately $3,281,000 (2001: $2,897,000) were

stated at net realisable value.

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES 16.

Trade receivables (consolidated) consisted of:

RZZTET-_F+=ZA=+—H

%

3,281,000t F B A AT B FEA K (=

TZ—4 :2,897,0007T) °©

& U8 BR 3K

YRR (R &) B4 ¢

2002 2001

ZETCF —TT-F

$'000 $'000

T T

Accounts receivable JE Ui B 3K 3,597 3,825
Retentions receivable YR B 1,152 2,239
4,749 6,064

Less: Provision for doubtful receivables B RERBRE (1,875) (2,050)
2,874 4,014
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16.

17.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 16.

The Group normally grants to its customers credit
periods ranging from 30 days to 60 days. Aging

analysis of trade receivables (consolidated) is as

FE W AR R (&)

AEB —R4ETEF30BE60REE
H o BRER K (RE) REDMMT ¢

follows:
2002 2001
—EE-F —TE-F
$'000 $'000
T Tr
0 to 1 month 0Z 18R 1,470 2,974
1 to 2 months 1£2/8AR 301 534
2 to 3 months 2Z 3@ A 273 306
3 to 6 months 3E6(E A 456 826
6 to 9 months 6% 98 A 894 1,212
9 to 12 months 9% 1218 A 775 79
12 to 15 months 12215/ A 580 133
4,749 6,064

(consolidated) consisted of:

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER CURRENT
ASSETS

Prepayments, deposits and other current assets

BREREMRBEE

BNFE - REREMRBDEE GRE)

2002 2001

—B2CF —TT-F

$'000 $'000

Tr T

Tax recoverable & Wit 3K - 718
Prepayments B HE 30 163
Rental and utility deposits HMERAASZERES 744 914
Others Hit 1,841 87
2,615 1,882
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18. SHORT-TERM BANK BORROWINGS 18. JEHISRITAER
Short-term bank borrowings (consolidated) BHERITE R(RE) B
consisted of:
2002 2001
—ETCZF —TT-F
$7000 $'000
T Tr
Bank overdrafts BITEX 1,206 1,177
Trust receipts bank loans FRBERITER 2,445 -
3,651 1177
Refer to Note 28 for details of the Group’s banking AEBBETHEFBEL R W E28 -
facilities.
19. TRADE PAYABLES 19. EMHERXR

The Group is normally granted by its vendors credit
periods ranging from 0 day to 30 days. Aging
analysis of trade payables (consolidated) is as

REE—REREEE TOREI0HEE
B BNERR(GE) RESTOAT :

follows:
2002 2001
—EE-F —TE—-F
$'000 $'000
T Tr
0 to 1 month 0E 118 A 234 899
1 to 2 months 1£2/8AR 143 433
2 to 3 months 2 3@ A = 295
3 to 6 months 3ZE6(E A 133 1,581
6 to 12 months 6E1218A 37 86
Over 12 months 128 A £ 419 126
966 3,420
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20.  FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS 200 RMEHEETEEERMAR
Details of finance lease obligations (consolidated), MEMEBRCEERNR BRE)NFB
net of future finance charges, are: T (hEHERKARNSEER) :

2002 2001
ZETCZF —TT-F
$/000 $'000
Tr Fr
Repayable within a period AN 5 AR 79 8 0 A HE R
- not exceeding one year -—%R - 239
— more than one year but not - —FERMER
exceeding two years - 43
- 282
Less: Amounts repayable within one year B EREERDEEZ-FA
included under current liabilities Eff£% - (239)
- 43
21.  SHARE CAPITAL 21. B
2002 2001
ZETCF e 32
Number Nominal Number Nominal
of shares value of shares value
R#PEAE & BRmEE A&
000 $7000 000 $'000
I T ¥ T
AUTHORISED EE
(ordinary shares (BREMEC.10T
of $0.10 each) ZB1H)
Beginning of year and FNRER
at end of year 1,000,000 100,000 1,000,000 100,000
ISSUED AND FULLY PAID BETRAR
(ordinary shares (BREMEC.107T
of $0.10 each) ZB1H)
Beginning of year and FNRER
at the end of year 232,000 23,200 232,000 23,200
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22.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has adopted a Share Option Scheme
on 3 May 2000 (“Share Option Scheme”), pursuant
to which it may grant options to employees
(including executive directors) of the Group to
subscribe for shares in the Company. Pursuant to
the Share Option Scheme, options were granted
on 30 June 2000 to executive directors and other
employees of the Group to subscribe for an
aggregate of 19,420,000 shares in the Company at
a price of $1.30 per share, during the exercise
period from 1 July 2003 to 30 June 2010. No
options were granted during the year ended 31
December 2002 under the Share Option Scheme.

Pursuant to resolutions passed at a special general
meeting of the shareholders held on 13 November
2002, the Company terminated the Share Option
Scheme and adopted a new share option scheme
(“New Share Option Scheme”) in order to comply
with the new requirements of Chapter 23 of GEM
Listing Rules effected on 1 October 2001. Under
the terms of the New Share Option Scheme, the
board of directors of the Company may, at their
discretion, grant options to the participants fall
within the definition prescribed in the New Share
Option Scheme including the employees, non-
executive directors of the Company or its
subsidiaries, etc. to subscribe for shares in the
Company at a price determined by the Company’s
Board of Directors, and will not be less than the
highest of (i) the nominal value of the shares; (ii)
the average closing price of the shares quoted on
the GEM on the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the closing
price of the shares quoted on the GEM on the date
of grant, subject to a maximum of 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time.
The number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any individual in any one year
is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
Options granted to substantial shareholders or
independent non-executive directors in excess of
0.1% of the Company’s share capital in issue and
with an aggregate value (based on the closing price
of the shares on the date of grant) in excess of $5
million must be approved by the Company’s
shareholders. The New Share Option Scheme will
remain in force for a period of 10 years from 13
November 2002. A nominal consideration of $1 is

payable on acceptance of the grant of an option.

22.

IR S
NAR—ZEETFRA=-HRM—E
RS (T Eﬂd REAEET &) « Rt - N
ARIAERRBERTAEEES (B1FH
TER) ARBRRBRG o 1B IR BARAE
T8 AEERTEERASEMNEAM
BEER-_ZTEZFNA=-tHEET
RBE RZZEZT=FtA—HE=-Z
—ZTFEXNAZ+THANRRELRE - UE
f%1.307C & £ 7R 8819,420,0008 5 ° B
BE-_ZTZT_F+-_A=+—HIEFE
R - AEEN SR RRER SR
RARAE -

4+

BREBERARARER_ZZZ_F+— A+
—HBRAZRER  ARAEKRIERR
e ST B BR 4y — TE ¥ R AR A 51 & ([#7 32
IRHEETEI]) - AR S RIZERAIZER £
RABEBER-_ZT-—F+A-—HEX
ZFER] o BRI ABIRES & 2GR
AAAEEZGAWIERTE N Hxﬁi?r
%‘Jﬁﬁ??\iz/a\;éi’é%ﬁi%(@%$
EIM#%QEZEE&%MT%%)?E&EJ%
BARAIRMDZARRE - BEZREE
HERRT =225 ()& 17 E 1B
(i)F% FE R IERRER T B B AT A E2
%EI B FH W E - A RE T (E A A
Bk A2 BT B SR BT A A2 R (i) A B AR (A 12
RREETER WEALXER)MIKM
B - mABWHmEENBRTAREKA
HEREMBETTBAARR R TRZ
BETRAZ10% - EEM—FRAME
Al =2 B2 A TR HE ZBRED R 2R
1 %(E 1E (M R EUS AN A Al 2 AR 58 it 8
C NSHBBARE SR BT EME
E ZH&@ZWO o A1 E EAR RSB L IEH
TEERLBEAARAFRA01%EEE
BB BSA BT RIRE - AE KIS
AARRR Z & - FTRIREE B =
TE_F+-—A+=BHEBBE+FANX
Bl o ERMABRER BTEAZGE
AL Z REARE ©
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22.

23.

SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 22. RRESE (&)
During the year ended 31 December 2002, no share RBE_ZTZE-_F+-_A=+—HL*F
option has been granted under the New Share B WABRBEHNBREFEIREZR
Option Scheme. The options already granted under Bt - MIRBERRESAEMERE 2R
the Share Option Scheme are unaffected. REMTZZE -
Movements of employee share options during the BHE_TZ_F+-A=+—HIEFE
year ended 31 December 2002 were: N RRENEBOT :
Number of shares
Granted Lapsed  Exercised
Subscription  Beginning during during during End
Date of grant Exercise period price per share of year the year the year  the year of year
ERX FE® FE® FEH ERX
RTHH AR BRTEE TEEE BFHE REIHHE EORE  GEHE
‘000 ‘000 '000 '000 '000
T T T T T
30 June 2000 1 July 2003 to
“EITR 30 June 2010
~A=TH ZEE-FrA-HE
—F-ZEAXAZ1H $1.30 14,410 - (850) - 13,560
RESERVES 23.  f#f%

Capital reserve (consolidated) represents the
negative goodwill arising from the acquisition of
Proactive Technology Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary, by CentreWorld Holding Ltd, another
wholly-owned subsidiary, in January 1998. The
Group has adopted the transitional provisions
allowed in SSAP 30, such that the negative goodwill
arising from acquisition before 1 January 2001 will
and no

continue to be held in reserves

reinstatement has been made.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), contributed surplus of the Company is
distributable to shareholders, subject to the
condition that the Company cannot declare or pay
a dividend,

contributed surplus if (i) it is, or would after the

or make a distribution out of

payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they
become due, or (ii) the realisable value of its assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share

premium account.

The Company had no reserves available for
distribution to shareholders as at 31 December
2002 (2001: Nil).

BARGEE BGE)RR—NAANE—A -
KR aE K 2 EH B 2 FCentreWorld
Holding LUEWE AR R AN S —REE
WEAREAME AR A AREER
BYEE AEEEMNSHEBRERSE
30SEFT A RF Z BB BIGER - BT T —
F-—A—HzARAKEME+ 2 8HE
BRSEEIIERE  RIZEEMT
BE o

BIEERE-NAN—FRAFE (KB
i) AARIMBABKRA ST ARR -
BARA N AES M ek 21 AR B sk 1 &
ABMELEDBEE - (VAR AT RESIESE
H X A& e B EAE I - sk(inE
BEMAZEEESEEMPRERE
&ﬁﬂﬁﬁ&$k$m1$ﬁm Fh4a

E o AIAQRRAfEH ElEM « X
ﬁﬁﬁﬁ°

RZZBEZE_F+-HA=+—H A2
jtﬂT{\/)Eﬁ‘%Hx%E’mﬁﬁ(f??*
FE)
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24.  NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 24, HmERETREBRMEE
CASH FLOWS
a. Reconciliation of loss before taxation and a. BR T AT R R at D BAR R B e =
minority interests to net cash (outflow) I REESEELE 2RSS (ORIE)
inflow generated from operations: MAFREZ AR -
2002 2001
—BEC-F =kt
$'000 $'000
Tr T
Loss before taxation and BB RARG D BRE
minority interests FEEESAER (9,915) (23,907)
Interest income FIEBA (175) (782)
Interest expense FlERXZ 126 399
Share of loss of an associate DEBEDRER 213 54
Depreciation of machinery and EEEENE
equipment 5,115 4,689
Net loss on disposal of machinery and ﬁ%/ﬁ%ﬁiﬁéz
equipment BT 148 638
Loss (gain) on disposal of HE B ’D\ Al B18 O A1)
investment in an associate ] 187 (24)
Provision for impairment in value BENRRERNBERS
of investment in an associate - 1,300
Loss on investments REBEEE 338 -
Write-off of development expenditures % & i #f 8§ 258 1,024
Operating loss before working 2ELCEEN L
capital changes SEBE (3,705) (16,609)
(Increase) decrease in inventories FE (M) HP (668) 1,088
Decrease in trade receivables R Ui B 3R 1,140 13,358
Decrease in prepayments, BAHE R REMRD
deposits and other current assets BERD 49 1,004
(Decrease) increase in amount due B & D RIUE
to an associate (RA) & m (805) 805
(Decrease) increase in trade payables — JEff BR3X (Bi4) 540 (2,454) 1,322
(Decrease) increase in accruals and BRER - Ef KRR
other payables (R 4) #n (3,848) 3,411
Increase (decrease) in receipts TR FRIE M CRd)
in advance 335 (325)
Net cash (outflow) inflow generated SBEEE 2R 2(RL)
from operations MARE (9,956) 4,054
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24.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 24.
CASH FLOWS (continued)

b.

FERERERME E)

Analysis of changes in financing is as b. MEZSHZHTMOT
follows:
Share capital Finance
and share lease Minority
premium Bank loans obligations interests
RAR REHEER L |
ROEE RITER EEEAR EY
$'000 $'000 $000 $'000
T T T T
As at 1 January 2001 RZZE-%-f—-H 52,335 1,479 491 =
Repayment of bank loans BERTER - (1,479) - -
Repayment of capital element EEREHEEEEE
of finance lease obligations ENHALHS = - (209) =
Capital injected by a minority MBRAADHRR
shareholder of a subsidiary YNV - - - 872
Share of the loss for the year ARRFEREER = = = (485)
Translation differences EXZE - - - 26
As at 1 January 2002 RZZEZE-£-F-A 52,335 - 282 413
Repayment of capital element of EEREHEEEEE
finance lease obligations ENHALHS = - (282) =
Share of loss for the year ARRFEREER - - - (71)
Payment to minority shareholder MBLAASHRRRE
of a subsidiary - - - (454)
Excess of payment to minority SUES G+ 1
shareholder over net book value REFEZZE - - - 95
Translation differences EREE = - - 17
As at 31 December 2002 i S kg
=t-H 52,335 - - -
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents is: c. ReRERRSEBEB DA :
2002 2001
e —EE-F
$/000 $000
T T
Cash and bank deposits Re RBAFER 11,305 17,591
Pledged bank deposits BRARTER 5,000 5,892
Bank overdrafts BITEZ (1,206) 1,177)
Trust receipts bank loans FRBERITER (2/445) -
12,654 22,306
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25.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The primary segment is defined by major product
and operational units, while secondary segment is

defined by geographical location of customers.

a. Primary segment

The Group is organised into three products
and operational units — telecommunications
products, computer telephony and other
products. The telecommunications products
and computer telephony products units
derive revenue from supply, development
and integration of telecommunications and
computer telephony systems and solutions,
respectively. They also earn rental income
from leasing telecommunications
equipments and computer telephony
systems and earn fees for consulting and
maintenance services. The other products
unit derives sales revenue from sale of
Wireless LAN products.

25. DEEHR
EERR N RREBERREB B
B - TR D RRE S E D
g5 -

a. EliEV
AEBEDNRBENER ERE
Eﬁ&ﬁﬁﬂ%nuflﬁguu&iﬁﬁ
Um#AK - EfERREKE
EmEEEMDRBBAEE - F?ﬂ
BEREABMEBEER R RN

ER Y- ES WES 6
BEWA - BREAMZEREKSE
HEARRERNE KA - WFE
B R A EA 5 I ME S AR 75 TR ER =
REERBKA o HAbE R EE
B35 HE B A E M BRER
HE WA



Notes to the Financial Statements

U

CL

Annual Report 2002

ZETFFRH

25. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

a.

Primary segment (continued)

258

Analysis by business segment is as follows:

DEEH(E)

a.

BRFEER (&)

BEBELHESIWT :

2002 2001
ZETCF —TT-F
$7000 $'000
T Tr
Turnover HEH
— Telecommunications - B 13,291 31,633
— Computer telephony -BRER 9,896 17,722
- Others - Hip 3,125 =
26,312 49,355
Loss attributable to BREEEER
shareholders
— Telecommunications - B 5,880 (63)
— Computer telephony -BRER 1,947 503
- Others - Hih 129 -
Segment profit DERAT 7,956 440
Unallocated expenses RABKAR (17,182) (23,376)
Loss from operations R R (9,226) (22,936)
Interest income FIE WA 175 782
Interest expenses MEHX (126) (399)
Loss on disposal/provision for HEBE DA
impairment in value of REBE/
investment in an associate REEE (187) (1,300)
Loss on investments REBEER (338) -
Share of loss of an associate RiEHE AR EE (213) (54)
Loss before taxation and BREE AT R AR AT D &
minority interests BRELEAEE (9,915) (23,907)
Taxation WA (56) (122)
Loss before minority interests Rt LHIRE
FEE R 2 A E 18 (9,971) (24,029)
Minority interests LYRREREMGER 71 485
(9,900) (23,544)




Annual Report 2002 Notes to the Financial Statements

ST T R B % ® & M O
25.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 25. SDFEER(E)
a. Primary segment (continued) a. EEER (&)

2002 2001
3 et T
$'000 $'000
T Tr

Depreciation &
— Telecommunications - B 1,667 2,046
— Computer telephony -BRER 1,008 748
— Unallocated vl 2,440 1,895
5,115 4,689

Capital expenditures BAER

— Telecommunications - B - 350
— Computer telephony -BRER - =
— Unallocated - KPR 487 11
487 361

Assets BE
— Telecommunications & 8,414 10,179
— Computer telephony -ENHEF 4,498 5,107
- Others —Hft 1,288 =
— Unallocated —-AHE 19,278 32,235
33,478 47,521

Liabilities &
— Telecommunications & 3,507 3,074
— Computer telephony -ENE; 2,855 2,340
- Others —Hft 1,876 =
— Unallocated -AHE 2,809 9,408
11,047 14,822
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25.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 25. SDFEER(E)
b. Secondary segment b. R FE R
Analysis by geographical location is as RREFHESMMT :
follows:
2002 2001
—EE-F —TE—-F
$'000 $'000
Tr T
Turnover HER
- Hong Kong -&% 23,820 40,582
— China —f 2,241 1,885
- Taiwan ) 234 88
- Australia —BMN 17 3,771
- Singapore — - 3,029
26,312 49,355

Loss (Profit) attributable to shareholders R ELER (HFl)

- Hong Kong -&k 8,786 20,241
~ China —HE 569 (111)
- Taiwan -RiE 441 1,719
- Australia —BMN 6 775
- Singapore — 98 920
9,900 23,544

Assets BE
- Hong Kong -&% 32,315 45,622
~ China —HE 270 135
- Taiwan -RE 770 1,440
- Australia — B 77 296
- Singapore — s 46 28
33,478 47,521

Liabilities &
- Hong Kong -&k 10,525 14,474
~ China - 24 44
- Taiwan -RE 480 265
- Australia — BN 14 34
- Singapore — 4 5

11,047 14,822
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26. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

26. EERJARER

a. Operating lease commitments a. REHEERNARE
The Group had operating lease AEEBRBEZEEHEERYEZ
commitments in respect of premises under TAIHEHKEHE ETREITK
various non-cancellable operating lease EHERYARE - REZSKE
agreements. The commitments payable HERDOMETE N ENEAERS
under these agreements are analysed as AT -
follows:
Consolidated Company
k) 27
2002 2001 2002 2001
8% C"2T-F | ZBB-F C"2T-F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i Tr i T
Amounts payable within RTI5IER 2
a period of EREHE :
- within one year -—%R 1,098 2,365 - -
- between one and two years -—FREMER 295 957 - -
- between two and five years -MERELER 15 - - -
1,408 3,322 - -
The commitments payable within the next H AR+ @ B A E Az F R
twelve months are analysed as follows: DT -
Consolidated Company
k) 27
2002 2001 2002 2001
“B%-F C"2T-F | ZBF-f C"2T-F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i T i T
Leases expiring within a period R T BRER 2 AERD
- not exceeding one year -—%R 790 333 - -
- within two years to five years ——F%RERER 308 2,032 - -
1,098 2,365 - -
b. Contingent liabilities b. HNREE
Consolidated Company
k) 27
2002 2001 2002 2001
8% C"2T-F | ZBF-f C-2T-F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i T i T
Guarantee provided to banks ARAGFAREZ
for banking facilities MERRZRTHE
granted to subsidiaries fifEd 2 B - - 6,200 12,500
Shipping guarantees AERZEEER = = = =
- - 6,200 12,500
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26. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 26. EERIAEEE)
(continued)
c. Capital commitments ch B AR
Group
AEE
2002 2001
- —EE-F
$'000 $'000
T T
Contracted but not provided BEEITGNEREREL
for- equity investment EE-RERE 377 —
27.  PENSIONS SCHEMES 27.  RAKEFEE
The Group maintains various retirement schemes AEEREEB R R AR KRR G
for its employees. The retirement schemes for non- & - B EEIMNME B TR AR KRGS
Hong Kong employees are defined contribution T OASEHAZ2REERFAARLRRD
schemes, with contributions to the schemes FHELEREER - EEARE S 48%
determined by reference to employees’ salaries and E20%FEH MK - MAKEBASES
length of service ranging from 8% to 20% for FH2K8%E255%(EHHR - AEER
employees and 8% to 25.5% for the employer. The EBEEXNERIBESE - A&E
Group’s Hong Kong employees are covered by the FEESGRHYEREGHANBK5%IE
mandatory provident fund, which is managed by AR - R ER &1,0007T © R EETE]
an independent trustee. The Group and its Hong REERAEEEENDRER -
Kong employees each make monthly contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ cash income
with the maximum contribution by each of the
Group and the employees limited to $1,000 per
month.
During the year, the aggregate contributions made NAFEE  AEERE S RIKERNF S
by the Group to the retirement schemes were Z R E F£4494,0007T (=TT —F -
approximately $494,000 (2001: $750,000). During 750,0007T) - AEEM - AEERFE
the year, there were no material forfeitures AERKRZHH(ZTE—F : BT) °
available to offset the Group’s future contributions
(2001: Nil).
28.  BANKING FACILITIES AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS 28. MITMEREEEN

As at 31 December 2002, the Group had aggregate
banking facilities of approximately $6,200,000
(2001: $13,000,000) from several banks for
overdrafts, loans, and trade financing. Unused
facilities as at the same date amounted to
approximately $2,371,000 (2001: $11,671,000).
These facilities were secured by pledges of the
Group’s bank deposits of approximately $5,000,000
(2001: $5,892,000). The Group did not have any

charges on other assets as at 31 December 2002.

N—_ZEZE—_F+_-_A=+—0 A&EH
HARITRE FE A5 46,200,0007T
(Z=Z—4% : 13,000,0007T) @ BIEE
Y BRAEBEZRE  UASEEZS
$R17 2 E #3513 X #5,000,0007T (=T Z
—%F :5,892,0007T) fEEH - B A &
REARREREARL A2,371,0007T (=
TZ—F :11,671,0007T) ° NEER =
EE_F+ A=+ AV ETHAHEM
BEMHGT -
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RESULTS E 51
Year ended 31st December
HZ+t-A=t-BLEE
1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
—AANE  -ARRE  ZEREREE ZZRE-F  C-ZE-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TET TET TET

Turnover BEE 21,625 32,823 63,816 49,355 26,312
Cost of sales HERKA (8,285) (11,328) (27,164) (19,473 (10,149)
Gross profit E 7 13,340 21,495 36,652 29,882 16,163
Other revenue Hip A 33 168 103 = =
Distribution & PEREETH

selling expenses (181) (706) (679) (1,535 (58)
General & administrative —BREARHEX

expenses (10,576) (14,960) (42,765) (51,283 (25,331)
Profits (Loss) from operations 4% & i 7 (&5 18) 2,616 5,997 (6,689) (22,936) (9,226)
Finance costs, net REKRNFE 48 144 629 383 49
Loss on disposal/ HEBRERARERSE/

provision for impairment MEERE

in value of investment in

an associate = = = (1,300 (187)
Loss on investments REEEBE - - - - (338)
Share of loss of PEBENREE

an associate (481) (761) (26) (54 (213)

Profit (Loss) before taxation BRI & A& &t D ERE

and minority interests FEfE & A e 7 (B 18) 2,183 5,380 (6,086) (23,907) (9,915)
Taxation Fim (492) (1,031) 161 (122 (56)
Profit (Loss) before Rt DERREEER

minority interests Bl a A (&518) 1,691 4,349 (5,925) (24,029 (9,971)
Minority interests LERREREGER - - - 485 71
Profit (Loss) for the year KEEEMN(EB) 1,691 4,349 (5,925) (23,544 (9,900)

ASSETS & LIABILITIES EERERE

As at 31st December

R+=A=+-H

1999 2000 2001 2002

—-hhAhE g 3 —EEZ-F —EECF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

TET THT THT FHx

Totol non-current assets ERBEELE 2,406 17,887 13,493 7,139
Total current assets MBEELE 20,213 56,755 34,028 26,339
Total current liabilities mBEELEE (12,582) (18,382) (14,779) (11,047)

Total non-current liabilities MR D ERFE R A

excluding minority interests FRBDEELE (269) (282) (43) =
Minority interests PHBBRRE R - - (413) -
Shareholders’ equity R B 9,768 55,978 32,286 22,431
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the annual general
meeting of shareholders of Proactive Technology Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) will be held at Units 2009-2018,
20th Floor, Shui On Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong on Wednesday, 23rd April, 2003 at 3:30 p.m.
for the following purposes:

1. to receive and consider the audited financial

statements and the reports of the Directors and
auditors of the Company and its subsidiaries for
the year ended 31 December 2002;

2. to re-elect the retiring Directors and authorise the
board of Directors to fix the Directors’ remuneration;

3. to re-appoint auditors and authorise the board of
Directors to fix their remuneration; and

As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, to pass
the following resolutions (“Resolutions”) as ordinary

resolutions:

4. THAT:

(a)

(b)

subject to paragraph (b) and (c) of this
Resolution, the exercise by the Directors
during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter
defined) of all powers of the Company to
allot, issue and deal with additional shares
of the Company and to make or grant offers,
agreements and options which might require
the exercise of such powers, be and the
same is hereby generally and unconditionally
approved;

the approval in paragraph (a) of this
Resolution shall be in addition to any other
authorisation given to the Directors and
shall authorise the Directors on behalf of
the Company during the Relevant Period to
make or grant offers, agreements and
options which might require the exercise of
such powers after the end of the Relevant
Period;

LEEEMRRIZERER AR ([RAAF]) #3577
R-ZEZE=FNA -+ =—BEH=TF=B=1+
DBEBET B EE6-85 T L P 020422009
2018EH THEMRITIRERE -

1. HEARALRMBARBE_STZT_F
ToA=+T B LEFELERMB®RE
MEESHREEZYERE

2. ERRIEFYURREECHETRES
Z B

3. REESAZ BRAD S R B R R T A SR B
& &

ERAS R RIR - BRABEER TIEER (DRE

R REBRFER

4. B -

(a) EARRERD) R OBMBET
— MM REEELEEEERE
BEEA (EER TOTEARAR
Al —H#EH - AERCE - 1T
FMERIBAR DA BEINRG - LAEH
I TG A Bk AT BE BT L S 4
AHAEHS R T 2 ERERE -
VE PSR 1T

ROeBTEENESEREN &
RER@BRZALEEREESTS
REQ2FAREBHRARELRR
AEH SR TREREEARES
RIBITEUFRE S 7 AIE R
FTRERER  HERELEBR
&
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(c)

the aggregate nominal amount of share
capital issued, allotted or dealt with or
agreed conditionally or unconditionally to
be allotted (whether pursuant to options or
otherwise) and issued by the Directors
pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) of
this Resolution, otherwise than pursuant to
(i) a Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined); or
(ii) the exercise of any option which may
be granted under the share option scheme
of the Company or any other option scheme
or similar arrangement for the time being
adopted by the Company for the grant or
issue to officers and/or employees of the
Company and/or any of its subsidiaries of
shares or rights to acquire shares of the
Company; or (iii) any scrip dividend scheme
or similar arrangements providing for the
allotment and issue of shares of the
Company in lieu of the whole or part of a
dividend on shares of the Company in
accordance with the bye-laws of the
Company in force from time to time or a
specific authority granted by the
shareholders of the Company in general
meeting, or (iv) rights or an issue of shares
of the Company upon the exercise of any
subscription rights attached to any existing
warrants of the Company or any existing
securities of the Company which carry rights
to subscribe for and/or are convertible into
shares of the Company, shall not exceed
the aggregate of :

(i) 20% of the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of the
Company in issue on the date of the
passing of this Resolution; and

(i) (if the Directors are so authorised
by a separate ordinary resolution of
the shareholders of the Company)
the nominal amount of any share
capital of the Company repurchased
by the Company subsequent to the
passing of this Resolution (up to a
maximum equivalent to 10% of the
aggregate nominal amount of the
share capital of the Company in
issue on the date of the passing of
this Resolution)

and the authority pursuant to paragraph (a)
of this Resolution shall be limited

accordingly; and

EEERBEARBR@BZALE
it s - BT REE R HRIFH
AR R B BE % (TR 2 SR
BEAsBREXEMERE) 2K
N EABEEBOER (EE
BTR3): shETEBEAR
AR Z BRIERT BN ER R
RAB R EAEM B R R =R
ANE R/ SR BB IHRBEITRN
Z RER T E R AR 2 AR E AR
B AT Bl IR B ¢ S GiDiR iR
RABAREARARBRRERR
RERTZHERERELE M
BOIARAROBERZAHBN
BB 2 A A B A BT B SE
ZHREITI ¢ K GvIECE# AR
BT AN A B) 1] 72 A 42 =8 AT B
ERRERE  ZERAEELR
TEMBE T —F 2 &M

(i) RAFBBROHARA
BT EE® R
20% ¢}

(i) (HEESEAQABRE
B — BB ML BR
HMEEE) AR BRARR
HEBBFBEENAR
AIRAEESARE (&N
KRBRBBEAMNAE
NAIBETRAMEL
H10%A5R)

N AR B ()R 2 #HEZE TR FE A Ut
BR &
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5.

(d)

THAT:

(a)

for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from
the date of the passing of this Resolution
until whichever is the earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual
general meeting of the Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within
the next annual general meeting of
the Company is required by the bye-
laws of the Company, the Companies
Acts 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
or any other applicable law of the
Bermuda to be held; and

(iii)  the date passing of an ordinary
resolution by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting
revoking, varying or renewing the
authority given to the Directors by
this Resolution.

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares in
the Company open for a period fixed by
the Company or by the Directors to holders
of shares in the Company on the register of
members of the Company on a fixed record
date in proportion to their holdings of such
shares or class thereof (subject to such
exclusion or other arrangements as the
Directors may deem necessary or expedient
in relation to fractional entitlements, or
having regard to any restrictions or
obligations under the law of, or the
requirements of any recognised regulatory
body or any stock exchange applicable to
the Company).

subject to paragraph (b) and (c) of this
Resolution, the exercise by the Directors
during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter
defined) of all powers of the Company to
repurchase its issued shares, subject to and
in accordance with all applicable laws and
rules and requirements of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Growth Enterprise Market on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as amended
from time to time, be and the same is hereby
generally and unconditionally approved;

BRARERNE -

[BRAMIEAN AR TRBE B
BETY =F2F&KF AL H
o

(i) ARARTERRBEFEXR
BHRRZB

(ii) RAAmz A mlfil - '
RE-NN—FQEDE
S EME M E R EER
EVIREARR AR
TREERABFERNEGZH
RimzB &

(iii) EXRRBIRERE L@
B EOR R R BE B
FIRERBETFARAE
EgHHZAH -

[ ] THE R AR R RARRE
=RET2HERN > MREER
B RAMATIRREMAZ RO
BABRBEER 2 FRLAIRE
BEBRDzEE KAXEES
TR RNZ EE B AIME
[ 2 (AR R B ' E K
ERRAEERBREMESFR
DM ZHRERRRBERERT Y
BeREAM ZHARE)

EARRBERD) L OBEMHRET -
—RUENREGTILEEEERA
BHEANCERL TOTERR
Rlz—tI#N  BRARRZE
BT - AR O ZARE M
EFMBTREEZERER R
AIREEMARXSMERAFE
XRFEF LR B IR
fRTHETT 5
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(b)

(c)

(d)

THAT:

the approval in paragraph (a) of this
Resolution shall be in addition to any other
authorisation given to the Directors and
shall authorise the Directors on behalf of
the Company during the Relevant Period to
procure the Company to repurchase its
issued shares at a price determined by the
Directors;

the aggregate nominal amount of shares of
the Company which may be repurchased
by the Company pursuant to the approval
in paragraph (a) of this Resolution during
the Relevant Period shall not exceed 10%
of the aggregate nominal amount of the
issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of the passing of this Resolution
and the said approval of this Resolution
shall be limited accordingly; and

for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from
the date of the passing of this Resolution
until whichever is the earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual
general meeting of the Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within
which the next annual general
meeting of the Company is required
by the Bye-laws of the Company, the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), or any other applicable
law of Bermuda to be held; and

(iii)  the date passing of an ordinary
resolution by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting
revoking, varying or renewing the
authority given to the Directors of
the Company by this Resolution.

condition upon the Resolution numbered 4 and 5

in the notice convening this meeting being passed,
the general mandate granted to the directors of the
Company to allot, issue and deal with additional

shares

of the Company pursuant to Resolution

numbered 4 in the notice convening this meeting

be and is hereby extended by the addition thereto
of an amount representing the aggregate nominal

value of shares repurchased by the Company under
the authority granted pursuant to or in accordance

with the authority granted under the said Resolution
numbered 5.

(b) RO TEENEMEEN A
RER@BRZALEEREESTS
REARFNEREHBEARER
ARIRBEBEGREZERBED
HE #1TRO

(c) RBEARBR QB Z2HE - AR
AINBBEHEA LD ETRD
ZHEERTE  THBBEARER
HBE AARFEBEITRAEE
#RRRZ10% - 1 BT At 2 #EJfE 75 &
AL RBR ¢ &

@)  RARETE

[BRAMIEAN AR TRBE B
BET =2F&KF AL H
o

(i) ARARTERRBEFEXR
BHRRZB

(i) i /NI i /NI I U
BRE-AN—FRQARF
R EM B REE
BABIRE AR QR AR
TTITEBRRBFRSZ
HERmzA &

(iii) EXRRABRRERE L@
BT R E R s
AIRARBERRERETAAE
=g HZAH -

B

EARSBEMBZLARESERER
EXNBBZEET  BAARAEES
RIERAKGBE FAFRBERATITEAR
RAIE AT B R BHITIRD 2 — AR
REE  EARRESESKREZE KT
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ZHRAEESE HUBBIAEBeAR
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necessary to enable the shareholders of the Company
to make an informed decision to vote on the proposed
resolution as required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited will be
included in the accompanying circular and will be
despatched to shareholders together with 2002 Annual
Report.
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7. To transact any other business. 7. e AL fth F I8 o

By Order of the Board EERE

Proactive Technology Holdings Limited ﬁnﬂﬂ&rﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ i

Tsang Chi Hin TE

Chairman and Executive Directors B A

Hong Kong, 31 March 2003 BB ZEE=F=A=+—H

Principal office: BMERE -

Units 2009-2018, 20th Floor a5

Shui On Centre BT

6-8 Harbour Road 2B 6-85%

Wanchai It 22 FR 0 204

Hong Kong 2009-2018%

Notes: Hat -

1. A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the 1. REEER ELAEZRERRZKR - 7
meeting is entitled to appoint a person or persons as i/ﬁ—uiﬁuﬁﬁﬂjf WRRERR
his proxy or proxies to attend and, on a poll, vote RREKRE -RZRKXBEARARAR
instead of him. A proxy need not be a shareholder of R e
the Company.

2. To be valid, a form of proxy must be completed and 2. RREEXRBREARASGEERTRE
returned to the Head Office and Principal Place of 48/ N AT L$ RIZEEMERREE
Business of the Company as soon as possible and in EXWE - TREYM  BRARKKRZERKE
any event not less than 48 hours before the time EER - RREERBBEFRF 120
appointed for holding the meeting and in default RIEmE R -
thereof the form of proxy shall not be treated as valid.

No instrument appointing a proxy shall be valid after
the expiry of 12 months from the date named in it as
at the date of its execution.

3. Delivery of an instrument appointing a proxy shall 3. BRRZXEZEZERERIER - BRDA
not preclude a shareholder from attending and voting REHERGELNRE LERE - EREBER
in person at the meeting and in such event, the T ZEERERRZNBEGEFERER -
instrument appointing a proxy shall be deemed to be
revoked.

4. In relation to proposed Resolution numbered 5 above, 4. FRAXMHRENFIERBER  EFZUE
the Directors wish to state that they have no present ! ?&%ﬁﬁﬁ%*ﬁ%ﬁEﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ%@&@ﬁ
intention to repurchase any of its issued shares "ﬁE?‘ﬁﬂx’@“\ BRRBEEXEA(EAR
pursuant to the relevant mandate but consider that NAABEENE  EHARREASRER
the mandate will provide the Company the flexibility AT ETTRE D o
to make such repurchase when appropriate and
beneficial to the Company.

5. An explanatory statement containing the information 5. RARGHEEEBAXIAER AﬂEU

EEFLMRAURENMBER - UEAR
ABRBEREEZHRBERE mﬁﬂ’ﬁtljﬁﬁ*”ﬁ’i
RE - AHBERER-—FT_FEOFR—
PHEETRROBILXMHA -
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Proactive Technology Limited
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No. 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
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AT A EB6-85 N H D
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Tel No. & 5E: (852) 2259-7300

Fax No. & (852) 2598-8290

Taiwan Office

BERSEE

Proactive Technology (Taiwan) Limited
5/F-6, No. 14, Lane 609, Sec. 5,

Chung Hsin Road,

San Chung City,

Taipei Hsien, Taiwan
EEZNEROBRQE

BEaltBE -EMEMBESER609B 145758 7 6
Tel No. & &: (886) 2-2278-7168

Fax No. {2 E: (886) 2-2278-7169

Singapore Office

R P E R

Proactive Technology (Asia) Pte Ltd

150 South Bridge Road, #B1-10 Fook Hai Building,
Singapore 058727, Republic of Singapore

Tel No. & F: ) 746-9180

Fax No. ffE: (65) 746-8165

Beijing Representative Office
ETRRRBEFE

Room 2110, 21st Floor, Tengda Building,
No. 168 Xizhimenwai Street,
Haidian District,

Beijing 100044, P.R.C.

1t R T8 E & 78 B PI9NK T 16855
BERE21E10E

H4m: 100044

Tel No. & &&: ) 10-8857-6376
Fax No. E‘?E: (86) 10-8857-6375

Shanghai Representative Office
EBRFJPBSBE

Room 2101-02, Shen Xin Building,

200 Ning Hai East Road,

Shanghai, Zip 20021, P.R.C.

BT EHEESREK 2005 HENE2110E
4R : 200021

Tel No. & &&: ) 21-5358-1206

Fax No.: {%E 86) 21-5358-1207

Australia Office
BONBRER

Proactive e-Commerce (Australia) Pty Limited

8/146 Station Street
Wentworthville,

NSW 2145, Australia

Tel No. & &&: ) 404-089820
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